
 

 

 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD  

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

 
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, August 7, 2025 at 6:00 P.M. 
 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 

B. Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the regular meeting of July 17, 2025. 

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters.  

1. Franklin High School, Conditional Use. Request to approve a resolution imposing conditions 

and restrictions for a Conditional Use for the Franklin High School, an educational facility use, 

upon property located at 8222 South 51st Street (Tax Key No. 807 9999 001). 

 

D. Citizen comment period. Citizens may comment upon the Business Matter items set forth on this 

Meeting Agenda. 

 

E. Business Matters  

1. Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance, Certified Survey Map and Comprehensive Master 

Plan Amendment. Request for recommendation to Common Council of an application for a 

two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on the northwest corner of South 27th 

Street and West Drexel Avenue, addressed as 2710 W. Drexel Avenue, 1 & 2 Northwestern 

Mutual Way (TKN 786 9980 003), and an application for a Comprehensive Master Plan 

Amendment to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map designation for Lot 1 

of the proposed CSM from Office Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Mixed Use 

and Areas of Natural Resource Features.  

2. Midland Commercial Development, Certified Survey Map. Request to recommend 

approval of a Certified Survey Map to create two commercial lots upon property located at 

10001 W Church Street (Tax Key No. 795 9999 007) 

 

F. Adjournment 

 
The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will live stream the Plan Commission meeting so the public can watch and listen to it at 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov. Any questions on this agenda may be directed to the Department of City Development’s 

office at 414-425-4024, Monday through Friday, 8 AM – 4:30 PM. 

 
*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during regular business hours. 

**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which 

they have decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale 

Village Board, even though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 

 

[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 

services. For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at 414- 425-7500.] 

 

REMINDERS:  Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: August 21, 2025. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov


  

 

City of Franklin unapproved 

Plan Commission Meeting 

July 17, 2025 

Minutes 

 

      A.  Call to Order and Roll Call 

Mayor John Nelson called the July 17, 2025 Plan Commission meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the 

Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Mayor John Nelson, Alderman Nabil Salous, Commissioners Kevin Haley, Patrick 

Leon and Michael Shawgo. Alderwoman Courtney Day arrived at 6:01 pm. Absent was 

Commissioner Rebecca Specht. Also present were City Attorney Jesse Wesolowski, Principal 

Planner Marion Ecks, Associate Planner Luke Hamill, Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, 

and Assistant City Engineer Kaitlyn Witkowiak.  

 

B.  Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of June 19, 2025. 

  Alderman Salous moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to approve the June 19, 

2025 meeting minutes. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-1). 

 

  C.  Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.   Minor site plans review standards in Planned Development District (PDD) No. 7, Major 

PDD Amendment. The City of Franklin proposes to amend the text of the Planned Development 

District No. 7 Ordinance to streamline the site plan approval process in the Franklin Industrial 

Park (PDD No. 7) by allowing and adding standards for administrative review of minor site plans 

by Department of City Development staff exclusively. 

 

Associate Planner Luke Hamill presented the Planned Development District No. 7 request.  

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing was read in to the record by Associate Planner Luke 

Hamill and the Public Hearing opened at 6:05 pm and closed at 6:05 pm.  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderman Salous seconded a motion to recommend approval of 

an Ordinance to amend Planned Development District No. 7 to allow for Minor Site Plan 

Amendments to be approved by City Development Staff. On roll call, all vote ‘ayes’; motion 

carried (5-0-1).  

 

 

2.   CarGet LLC, Conditional Use. Request to approve a resolution imposing conditions and 

restrictions for a Conditional Use for CarGet LLC, a used car sales and major automotive repair 

facility upon property located at the Northwest Corner of Forest Home Avenue and Rawson 

Avenue (TKN 748 9990 000).  

 

Associate Planner Luke Hamill presented the Conditional Use application request. Applicant 

Sarath Mahanti of CarGet, LLC was also present. 

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing was read in to the record by Associate Planner Luke 

Hamill and the Public Hearing opened at 6:20 pm and closed at 6:24 pm.  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderman Salous seconded a motion to recommend approval of 

a resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Conditional Use for a 



  

 

used car sales and automotive repair facility upon property located at 0 W Forest Home Avenue 

(Tax Key No. 748 9990 000). On roll call, all vote ‘ayes’; motion carried (5-0-1).  

  

3.   Franklin High School, Natural Resource Special Exception. Natural Resource Special 

Exception (NRSE) for proposed impacts and disturbance of approximately 0.65 acres of wetland, 

2.11 acres of wetland buffer, 1.41 acres of wetland setback, and 8.18 acres of woodland to allow 

for the construction of a building addition, a concession building, parking lot and drive additions, 

tennis courts, and soccer field at Franklin High School located at 8222 South 51st Street (Tax 

Key No. 807 9999 001). 

 

Principal Planner Marion Ecks presented the Natural Resource Special Exception application 

request. Applicant Andy Chromy of Franklin Public Schools was present. 

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing was read in to the record by Principal Planner Ecks and the 

Public Hearing opened at 7:01 pm and closed at 7:31 pm.  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderman Salous seconded a motion to suspend rules for further 

comment at 8:48 pm. On roll call, all vote ‘ayes’; motion carried (5-0-1). 
 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderwoman Day seconded a motion to return to normal business 

at 9:23 pm. On roll call, all vote ‘ayes’; motion carried (5-0-1). 
 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderwoman Day seconded a motion to table until August 21, 

2025, with the understanding to the applicant to work with neighbors on mitigation of tree 

removal onsite and offsite. On roll call, all vote ‘ayes’; motion carried (5-0-1). 

 

D.   Citizen comment period. Citizens may comment upon the Business Matter items set forth on 

this meeting agenda. 

 

The citizen comment period opened at 9:36 p.m. and closed at 9:36 p.m. 

 

 E.   Business Matters 

 

1.    ROC Ventures LLC, Site Plan Amendment. Request to allow two container structures as 

concession stands at Franklin Field Stadium located at 7035 S Ballpark Drive  

 

Principal Planner Marion Ecks presented the Site Plan Amendment request. Applicant Chris 

Conley, ROC Ventures LLC, was present. 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded motion to adopt a resolution 

amending the Site Plan for the Franklin field Stadium Located at 7035 South Ballpark Drive 

to allow for the construction of two container structures for concession stands use. On voice 

vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-1). 

 

2.   CARMA Laboratories Inc., Sign Review. Request for a second monument sign on the 76th St. 

frontage of Carma Labs located at 9410 S. 76th St.  

 

Principal Planner Marion Ecks presented the Sign Review request. Applicant Alex Scheler, 

Carma Laboratories was present. 

 



  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Shawgo seconded motion to adopt a resolution 

approving a second monument sign for the 76th St. Frontage of Carma Labs (9410 S. 76th 

Street). On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-1). 

 

  F.   Adjournment  

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderwoman Day seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:40 

pm. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-1). 



      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of August 7, 2025 

 
Conditional Use 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Department of City Development Staff recommends this item be 
tabled and postponed to the August 21, 2025 Plan Commission meeting. 

Project Name:  Franklin Public Schools Conditional Use 
Project Location: 8222 South 51st Street (Tax Key No. 807 9999 001) 
Property Owner: Franklin High School 

Franklin School District #5 
Applicant: Andrew Chromy, Franklin Public Schools 
Agent: Jesse Becker, Point of Beginning 
Current Zoning: I - Institutional District, FW Floodway District, and C-1 

Conservancy District 
2025 Comprehensive Plan: Institutional and Areas of Natural Resource Features 
Applicant’s Action Requested: Recommendation to the Common Council for approval of 

the Natural Resource Special Exception Application 
Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 

 

The applicant, Franklin Public Schools, filed a Conditional Use Permit as part of their 
submission to allow for site and building modifications for the Franklin High School facility 
located at 8222 S. 51st Street. This property is zoned Institutional District. Table 15-3-04(C) of 
the UDO allows an “Educational Facility” as a Conditional Use in this district. 
 
The project includes razing 70,000 square feet of the existing high school and constructing a 
192,000 square foot building addition. Site improvements include: 
 

• Ten tennis courts and three future tennis courts 
• Soccer field 
• Drive and parking additions 
• An access drive connection to High View Drive 
• Press box 
• Concession building 
• 1,300 square foot storage building with a height of 14’-4”  
• Greenhouse 
• Utility and storm water management improvements 

 
Recently the Franklin High School Natural Resource Special Exception Application was tabled 
to the August 21st Plan Commission meeting. Prior to that item being tabled, the public hearing 

Item C.1. 
 



 2 

notice was published and mailed for the Conditional Use Application to be heard at the August 
7th Plan Commission meeting.  
 
The applicant is requesting, with agreement from Planning Staff, that the Conditional Use be 
tabled and postponed to the August 21st Plan Commission meeting. This will allow all 
applications for this project to be heard at the same time. 



DREXEL AVE

ALLWOOD DR

51
S
T

S
T

5 6
T
H

S
T

57
TH

S
T

51
S
T

S
T

DREXEL AVE

47
T
H

S
T

FOREST HILL

AV
E

42
N
D

S
T

4 3R
D

S
T

FORES

T
HI

LL
AVE

ANITA LN

SHARON LN

City of Franklin Property Viewer

SE Wisc Reg Planning Comm, SEWRPC, Maxar

Parcel

7/30/2025, 1:39:24 PM
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.15 0.30.07 km

1:9,028

Guest

Earthstar Geographics | City of Franklin, WI |



 

STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
               

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS  
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE FOR THE FRANKLIN HIGH SCHOOL, 

AN EDUCATIONAL FACILITY USE, UPON PROPERTY LOCATED  
AT 8222 SOUTH 51ST STREET (TAX KEY NO. 807 9999 001)  

(FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS, APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER) 
              
 
 WHEREAS, Franklin Public Schools, having petitioned the City of Franklin for the 
approval of a Conditional Use within the I Institutional District under Institutional Use Title 
“Educational Facility”, to operate a high school facility, located at 8222 South 51st Street, 
bearing Tax Key No. 807 9999 001, more particularly described as follows: 

 
The West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 14, Township 5 North, 
Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion of Land conveyed in instrument 
recorded on June 06, 1967 in Reel 362, Images 1062-1065 as Document 
No. 4321782; August 12, 1983, in Reel 1556, Image 914 as Document No. 
5642797; August 07, 1986, in Reel 1932, Images 950-951 as Document 
No. 5947553; and December 01, 2009 as Document No. 09819502. 

 
 WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the City 
of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9-06E. of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan Commission on 
the ____ day of _______, 2025, and the Plan Commission thereafter having determined to 
recommend that the proposed Conditional Use be approved, subject to certain conditions, and the 
Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Conditional Use upon such conditions, 
pursuant to §15-9-06H of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the 
purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will 
not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it will not interfere with the 
development of neighboring property; that it will be served adequately by essential public 
facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic congestion; and that it will not result in 
damage to property of significant importance to nature, history or the like; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission 
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Conditional Use, subject to conditions, 
meets the standards set forth under §15-9-06H of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the 
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Franklin Public Schools, for the approval of a 
Conditional Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this Resolution, be and 
the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions: 



FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS – CONDITIONAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
Page 2 
 

 
1. That this Conditional Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by 
Franklin Public Schools, successors and assigns, as a high school facility, which shall be 
developed in substantial compliance with, and operated and maintained by Franklin 
Public Schools, pursuant to the application materials City file-stamped ______ ___, 2025. 

2. That this Conditional Use is only for the use of the property and a full Site Plan 
Review will need to be approved prior to construction of concurrently proposed building 
and site modifications. 

3. Franklin Public Schools, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin 
the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the 
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Franklin Public 
Schools high school facility, within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this 
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-
9-14 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies 
provisions, as amended from time to time. 

4. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Franklin Public Schools and 
the high school use for the property located at 8222 South 51st Street: (i) being in 
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and 
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the 
like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this 
approval. 

5. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Article 6 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance and must receive a Sign Permit from the City Development 
Department prior to installation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Franklin Public Schools, successors or 
assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of the conditions 
and restrictions of this Conditional Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day notice to cure, and 
failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and hearing, may 
revoke the Conditional Use permission granted under this Resolution. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or restriction of 
this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9-14 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the 
penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than $2,500.00, or such other 
maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as may be specified therein from 
time to time.  Each day that such violation continues shall be a separate violation.  Failure of the 
City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of that or any other violation. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such 
Conditional Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9-06 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 



FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS – CONDITIONAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
Page 3 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9-06J. of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, that the Conditional Use permission granted under this Resolution shall be null and 
void upon the expiration of two years from the date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the 
Conditional Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit for such 
use. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain the 
recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 
  
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_____ day of ________, 2025. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin 
this ______ day of ________, 2025. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 







C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of August 7, 2025 

 

CMP Amendment and Certified Survey Map 
 

1 
 

E.1 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the applications for a Certified Survey 
Map, and a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment. Recommended Conditions of Approval are 
provided in the draft Resolution(s). 

Project Name: Costco CSM  
Property Owner: Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance  
Applicant: Brian Konyn, Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance  
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 2710 W. Drexel Avenue,  
 1 & 2 Northwestern Mutual Way, 
 786 9980 003 
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Agent: Brian Konyn 
Zoning District: BP Business Park & OL-1, Office Overlay District (at 

time of submittals) 
Use of Surrounding Properties: Oak Creek – Business / Vacant (east) 
  Office (north and west) 
 Mixed Use and Multifamily (south)  
Application Request: Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, 
 Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
Staff Planner: Marion Ecks, AICP 
 
The applications before the Commission today are requests for a two-lot Certified Survey Map 
(CSM), and for a Comprehensive Master Plan (CMP) Amendment.  The applicant, Northwestern 
Mutual Life Insurance, is seeking approval of a CSM to create a new parcel from a portion of the 
property which is undeveloped. A CMP Amendment will allow for a future change in the zoning 
and a Planned Unit Development for redevelopment of the southeast corner of their property at 
27th and Drexel Ave.   
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
Approval of the full development requires a Certified Survey Map, Comprehensive Master Plan 
Amendment, Rezoning / Planned Unit Development (PUD), and Site Plan. The entire property 
is currently owned by Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance.  The proposed Lot 1 does not have 
buildings on it.   
City Development staff has the following comments and concerns about this proposal. Detailed 
comments to the applicant are provided in the Staff Review Response Letter memo attached. 
 
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and CSM 
The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan designates this property as “Office” with 



 2 

areas of “Natural Resources”. The Natural Resource designation is not intended to preclude 
development, but to note the presence and importance of natural resources on the property.  The 
Office designation only permits office uses. In order to revise the zoning at this location, the 
Comprehensive Master Plan must also be updated to allow for commercial uses. There are 
properties immediately adjacent to these lands that have Mixed Use future land use.   
 
The surrounding area has a Future Land Uses of Mixed Use to the north and south, which includes 
residential, commercial, and institutional uses. There is also a small segment of a multifamily land 
use area to the south of the site.  To the west are single family homes with Office future land use, 
and vacant land that is designated recreational.  All areas include natural resource future land use.  
 
Planning recommends that the new Lot 1 also receive the designation of Mixed Use, to allow for 
rezoning to B-MU Mixed Use and an accompanying PUD. 
 
The proposed CSM complies with the requirements of the B-MU zoning district and allows 
adequate access to the site.  The applicant will need to either provide or revise conservation 
easements, landscape bufferyard easements, and cross access easements.  The location of these 
easements will depend on the development plans, so staff recommends they be a requirement of a 
future Site Plan.  
 
In addition, the land division will affect the Northwestern Mutual Life campus layout.  NML will 
need to request a revision to their approved Site Plan to account for changes to parking and 
landscaping.  
 
Future Development 
Plan Commission materials include conceptual site plans for the proposed Costco commercial 
building, gas station, and related parking and landscaping. For full development of the site, the 
applicants must submit a Site Plan application for Plan Commission approval of final project 
designs.  Due to site constraints, and some of the requirements of the Costco standardized 
buildings, the proposed development will not conform to the standards of the B-MU Mixed Use 
district.  As a result, they will be requesting a Planned Unit Development (similar to the Planned 
Development Districts in the 1998 Unified Development Ordinance), with modifications to the B-
MU standards.  The Site Plan will have to comply with the terms of the PUD.   
 
These items will be submitted pending approval of the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, 
which will allow for the zoning of this property to be changed to include commercial uses. 
 
Staff notes the presence of wetlands on the newly created parcel.  The applicant expects that these 
will be determined to be artificial by the WI Department of Natural Resources.  The natural 
resource protection standards of UDO Part 7 will apply to future applications.  
 
Recommendation 
All resolutions are drafted with a standard set of condition relating to development timelines and 
requirements, approvals from other jurisdictions and departments, etc.  Staff recommends the 
following additional conditions based on review of these applications for compliance with the 
Unified Development Ordinance: 
 



 3 

Certified Survey Map: 

• Northwestern Mutual Life must update their Site Plan.  
 

CMP Amendment: None.   
Staff recommends approval of the applications, subject to conditions in the draft legislative 
documents. 
 
Exhibits: 
 
• Applicant Exhibits  



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
              PLAN COMMISSION     [Draft 07-24-2025] 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025 COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE 

CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF  

SOUTH 27ST STREET AND WEST DREXEL AVE, ADDRESSED AS 2710 W. DREXEL 
AVENUE, 1 & 2 NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL WAY (TKN 786 9980 003),  FROM OFFICE 

USE AND AREAS OF NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES USE  
TO MIXED USE AND AREAS OF NATURAL RESOURCE  FEATURES   

(TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 20.18 ACRES)  
PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. § 66.1001(4)(B) 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of 

Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in 
Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001(1)(a) and 66.1001(2); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(b), the Plan Commission may 

recommend the amendment of the Comprehensive Master Plan to the Common Council by 
adopting a resolution by a majority vote of the entire Commission, which vote shall be recorded 
in the official minutes of the Plan Commission; and 
  
 WHEREAS,  Brian Konyn, Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance has applied for an 
amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land 
Use Map designation for the property generally located on the northwest corner of South 27th 
Street and West Drexel Avenue, addressed as  2710 W. Drexel Avenue, 1 & 2 Northwestern 
Mutual Way (TKN 786 9980 003), from Office Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use 
to Mixed Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use; and more particularly described as 
follows:  

  
Lot 1, in Certified Survey Map No.   , being a part of Parcel 1, Certified Survey Map No. 
7389, being in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 12, Township 5 North, Range 21 
East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section; thence South 88° 00' 
24" West along the South line of said 1/4 Section a distance of 152.80 feet to a point; thence 
North 01° 59' 36" West 65.00 feet to a point in the North line of Drexel Avenue and the point of 
beginning of lands to be described: thence South 88° 00' 24" West along said North line 451.36 
feet to a point; thence Northwesterly along an arc of a curve to the right with an arc length of 
48.14 feet, whose radius is 30.00 feet and whose chord bears North 46° 01' 04" West 43.14 feet 
to a point; thence North 00° 02' 45" West 97.10 feet to a point; thence Northwesterly along an 
arc of a curve to the left with an arc length of 357.37 feet, whose radius is 475.00 feet and whose 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025 -____ 
Page 2  

chord bears North 21° 35' 44" West 349.00 feet to a point; thence North 43° 08' 56" West 425.37 
feet to a point; thence North 41° 12' 13" West 80.21 feet to a point; thence North 30° 52' 34" 
West 88.10 feet to a point; thence North 44° 43' 13" East 85.81 feet to a point; thence 
Northeasterly along an arc of a curve to the left with an arc length of 106.87 feet, whose radius is 
151.25 feet and whose chord bears North 64° 53' 29" East 104.66 feet to a point; thence North 
45° 05' 01" East 53.24 feet to a point; thence South 45° 02' 30" East 165.89 feet to a point; 
thence North 44° 57' 30" East 467.88 feet to a point; thence North 89° 57' 30" East 407.80 feet to 
a point in the West line of South 27th Street; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 
183.93 feet to a point; thence North 89° 57' 30" East along said West line 5.00 feet to a point; 
thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 176.22 feet to a point; thence North 89° 57' 
30" East along said West line 15.50 feet to a point; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said 
West line 393.48 feet to a point; thence South 04° 32' 22" West along said West line 168.40 feet 
to a point; thence South 00° 01' 45" East along said West line 229.74 feet to a point; thence 
South 32° 50' 46" West along said West line 104.83 feet to the point of beginning; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having determined that the proposed amendment, in 
form and content as presented to the Commission on ________________, 20__, is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Master Plan’s goals, objectives and policies and in proper form and 
content for adoption by the Common Council as an amendment to the 2025 Comprehensive 
Master Plan, subject to such modifications the Common Council may consider reasonable and 
necessary, following public hearing, in order to protect and promote the health, safety and 
welfare of the City of Franklin. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the application for and the proposed ordinance to amend the City of 
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use 
Map designation for the property generally located on the northwest corner of South 27th Street 
and West Drexel Avenue, addressed as  2710 W. Drexel Avenue, 1 & 2 Northwestern Mutual 
Way (TKN 786 9980 003), from Office Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to 
Mixed Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use, be and the same is hereby 
recommended for adoption and incorporation into the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan by the 
Common Council. 
 

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin 
this _______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025 -____ 
Page 3  

 
___________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
[Draft 07-24-2025] 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025  
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF FRANKLIN  

2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR  
THE PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF  

SOUTH 27ST STREET AND WEST DREXEL AVE, ADDRESSED AS 2710 W. DREXEL 
AVENUE, 1 & 2 NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL WAY (TKN 786 9980 003),  FROM 

OFFICE USE AND AREAS OF NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES USE  
TO MIXED USE AND AREAS OF NATURAL RESOURCE  FEATURES   

(TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 20.18 ACRES)  
(BRIAN KONYN, NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE) 

(NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE, PROPERTY OWNERS) 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of 

Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in 
Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001(1)(a) and 66.1001(2); and 
  
 WHEREAS, Brian Konyn, Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance has applied for an 
amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future 
Land Use Map designation for the property generally located on the northwest corner of 
South 27th Street and West Drexel Avenue, addressed as  2710 W. Drexel Avenue, 1 & 2 
Northwestern Mutual Way (TKN 786 9980 003), from Office Use and Areas of Natural 
Resource Features Use to Mixed Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin by a majority vote of the 
entire Commission on ___________, 2025, recorded in its official minutes, has adopted a 
resolution recommending to the Common Council the adoption of the Ordinance to Amend 
the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 
Future Land Use Map for the property generally located on the northwest corner of South 
27th Street and West Drexel Avenue, addressed as  2710 W. Drexel Avenue, 1 & 2 
Northwestern Mutual Way (TKN 786 9980 003), from Office Use and Areas of Natural 
Resource Features Use to Mixed Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan is hereby  

amended to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map 
designation for the property generally located on the northwest corner 
of South 27th Street and West Drexel Avenue, addressed as 2710 W. 
Drexel Avenue, 1 & 2 Northwestern Mutual Way (TKN 786 9980 003), 



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-____ 
Page 2 
 

from Office Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Mixed 
Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use.  Such property is 
more particularly described within Resolution No. 2025 ____ of even-
date herewith. 

SECTION 2: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  Should any 
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passage and publication. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of __________________, 2025, by Alderman ___________________. 

 
Passed and adopted by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common Council 

at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this _______ day of 
____________________, 2025. 
 

      
 APPROVED: 

 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
          [Draft 07-25-2025] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP, BEING A PART OF A PART OF PARCEL 1, IN CERTIFIED SURVEY 

MAP NO. 7389, BEING IN THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 AND SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4, ALL IN SECTION 12, IN TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN 
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN  

(BRIAN KONYN, NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE)  
(NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE, PROPERTY OWNERS) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for approval 
of a certified survey map, such map being a redivision of a part of Parcel 1, in Certified Survey 
Map No. 7389, being in the Southwest 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 
Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, all in Section 12, in Township 5 North, 
Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan 
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such proposed 
certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain conditions. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the 
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Brian Konyn, 
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by 
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and made by 
the applicant, prior to recording. 

 
2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this 

Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal 
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development and building 
permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such Code and 
Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time. 

 
3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of 

separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the City of 
Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form and content as 
may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or designee to further and 
secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to the approval of the Common 
Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey Map. 



NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE – CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
Page 2 
 

4. Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance, successors and assigns, and any developer of the 
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance two (2) lot certified survey map project, shall pay 
to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review 
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, 
within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of 
the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to 
time. 

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance 
and the two (2) lot certified survey map project for the property located at 2710 W. 
Drexel Avenue, 1 & 2 Northwestern Mutual Way (TKN 786 9980 003: (i) being in 
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and 
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the 
like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this 
approval. 

6. The applicant shall apply for a Site Plan Amendment to account for changes to their site 
resulting from the CSM prior to the approval of any Site Plan for development of the new 
Lot 1. 

7. The applicant must resolve any technical corrections required by the Engineering or 
Planning Department, or the City Attorney’s Office prior to the recording of the Certified 
Survey Map. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, 
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval 
and without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the 
above conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this 
Resolution. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions within 
180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval, and 
pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and procedures for the 
recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to obtain the recording of 
the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance, with the 
Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County. 
 

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______day of ____________________, 2025. 

 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
 
 



NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE – CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
Page 3 
 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 
 
 
 
 



35
T
H

S
T

DREXEL AVE

27
T
H

S
T

31
S
T

S
T

27
T
H

S
T

DREXEL AVE

31
S
T

S
T

City of Franklin Property Viewer

SE Wisc Reg Planning Comm, SEWRPC, Maxar

Parcel

7/31/2025, 8:53:26 AM
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.15 0.30.07 km

1:9,028

Guest

Earthstar Geographics | City of Franklin, WI |



The Avenue 

275 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300 

Milwaukee, WI 53203 

414 / 259 1500 

414 / 259 0037 fax 
www.graef-usa.com 

 

2024-0222.00 

July 28, 2025 
  
Marion Ecks 
City of Franklin 
9229 West Loomis Road 
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 
 
SUBJECT: Costco Wholesale- Franklin, WI 
 
Dear Marion: 
 
Per your email on 7/17/2025, we are enclosing 12 paper copies of the application 
materials for the Certified Survey Map (CSM) and Comprehensive Master Plan 
Amendment (CMP) Applications for the Costco Wholesale project to be located at the 
corner of West Drexel Ave and South 27th Street.  
 
These items have also been emailed to the City on 7/28/25 to complete the electronic 
copy requirement outlined in the 7/17 email to the applicants. As discussed on the phone 
last week, an overall site plan has been included in this submittal. The site plan 
packages will be formally submitted separately under the Site Plan Application.  
 
Items within this submittal are as follows (12 Copies of Each): 
 
Certified Survey Map: 

• Application Form 

• Project Narrative 

• Certified Survey Map 

• Legal Description 
o Of Full Parcel 
o Of Lot to be Created 

• Natural Resource Protection Plan 
 
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment: 

• Application Form 

• Legal Description 

• Project Narrative 

• Overall Site Development Plan 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Ben Langemeier, PE 
Project Manager 
 
X:\ML\2024\20240222\Correspondence\Submittals\2025-07-28 CSM and Comp Plan Resubmittal

 
 
 
Ben Langemeier, PE Ben Langemeier, PE 

Graef-USA Inc.   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Project Description – Northwestern Mutual Parcel – South 27th Street 

Costco Wholesale Corporation is planning to develop the northwest corner of the 
intersection of South 27th Street and West Drexel Avenue in the City of Franklin, Wisconsin.  
The parcel is a 20.1757-acre site that is to be subdivided from a larger, existing 79.5-acre 
parcel owned by The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company. 

The portion of the site Costco is anticipating developing is undeveloped and was rough 
graded with the 2001 development of the Northwestern Mutual campus to the north.  The 
non-campus portion of the site includes stormwater ponds that capture runoff from the 
campus and landscape features (including the large prairie area) that were installed with 
the intent of development at a later date.  

If approved, the proposed Costco development will include an approximately 162,000 
square foot retail facility with a tire sales component, a fueling station, and an additional 
~13.0 acres of exterior developments associated with access drives, parking stalls, 
stormwater management, and landscaping/screening. The project is planning to 
commence construction during the 2026 Construction Schedule. And opening in late 2026. 

 



The Avenue 

275 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300 

Milwaukee, WI 53203 

414 / 259 1500 

414 / 259 0037 fax 
www.graef-usa.com 

 
2024-0222.00 

 

July 28th, 2025 
 
City of Franklin – Department of City Development  
9229 W. Loomis Road 
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 
 
SUBJECT: Department of City Development– Staff Review Response Letter 
 
Dear Marion Ecks: 
 
This letter is in response to the review comments received July 17, 2025, regarding the 
review of the Costco Wholesale Development’s Certified Survey Map (CSM) and 
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment (CMP) Applications. This letter is formatted to 
follow the comment letter and addresses each comment.  
 
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment: 
 

1. The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan designates the property 
as “Office.” This narrowly-tailored land use limits the utility of the area while not 
offering opportunities for less-intense mixed or residential uses.  Office uses are 
allowed in all commercial zoning districts including B-MU zoning.   
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. 
 

2. Landscape bufferyards are required on property lines adjacent to parcels with 
different zoning.  They must be recorded by separate document subject to 
Common Council approval; the template for this is attached.  These easements 
will be required at the time of a Site Plan. 
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. This will be addressed at the time of Site Plan 
Applications.  

 
Certified Survey Map:  
 

3. Milwaukee County Register of Deeds comments are attached. 
GRAEF RESPONSE: Comments have been addressed on Resubmitted CSM. 

 
4. A Site Plan Amendment for the Northwestern Mutual Life site must be submitted 

to update parking counts and site configuration to account for the CSM.  I have 
attached the relevant application form. 
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. Site Plan Amendment for NM will be submitted at a 
later date once Parcel is created. 

 
5. Conservation Easements will be required at the time of a Site Plan.  The 

template for this is attached.  
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. 



 

 

 

City of Franklin – Marion Ecks -2- July 28, 2025 

 
2024-0222.00 

 

6. Are any revisions to existing conservation easements proposed?  (for example, 
Wetland W-5 or W-6?) 
GRAEF RESPONSE: No impacts to existing conservation easements are 
anticipated with Costco’s development. All easements are remaining on NM’s 
property. 

 
7. Cross access easements must be provided between all development lots.  These 

may be privately recorded. These easements will be required at the time of a Site 
Plan. 
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. 

 
a. NRPP 

A. What is the date of the wetland delineation?  Note that delineations may 
not be older than 5 years.   
GRAEF RESPONSE: Wetland Delineation on Costco’s site was 
performed in 2025. A WDNR Concurrence was issued. An Artificial 
Exemption is in progress and expected in the next couple of weeks. See 
item I within the NRPP. 
 

B. No additional comments at this time on the Natural Resource Protection 
Plan. A review against development plans will occur upon submittal of a 
Site Plan. Impacts to natural resources beyond the standards of UDO 
Part 7 may require a Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE). 
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. 

 
Site Plan / PDD Concept 
 

8. Full site plan review will be required at the time of development.  Please let staff 
know if you have questions about any specific aspect of the Site Plan approval 
process.   
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. We are in the process of preparing the Site Plan 
and PDD submittals and will provide the applicable applications and materials at 
that time. This submittal is for the CSM and CMP applications 

 
9. Upon further review, we have concerns about the use of metal panels in the 

design.  We recommend looking to some nearby examples for materials; please 
see comments from John Regetz: 

a. Pewaukee – is good, they use white-block-accent-panels; 
b. Pleasant Prairie – Very nice, they use the beige-stone-columns and 

textured-concrete-accent-panels; 
c. Grafton - Very nice, they use the beige-block-columns and textured-

concrete-panels; 



 

 

 

City of Franklin – Marion Ecks -3- July 28, 2025 

 
2024-0222.00 

 

d. Middleton - Very nice, they use the beige-stone-columns and textured-
concrete-accent-panels. 

GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. Revised Architecture will be submitted 
separately. 
 

Engineering Department Comments (CSM):  
 

• The wetland delineation report has expired, new delineation required 
GRAEF RESPONSE: See response to item 7(a) above.  

• Add legend to CSM 
GRAEF RESPONSE: See page 1 for legend information 

• Show wetland buffers, 20’ and 30’ 
GRAEF RESPONSE: Further conversations between NM, RA Smith and the City 
will be needed regarding this comment. CSM will be reflected to address the 
outcome of that meeting. 

• Show watermain easement on CSM 
GRAEF RESPONSE: The proposed watermain layout is in progress at this time. 
Watermain easements will be accounted for in a separate submittal when the 
public water main layout is finalized. 

 
General 
 
Please let us know what to do with the checks provided with the initial application 
submittal in the incorrect amount.  Should we destroy them or send them back to you? 

• Check No. 141545 in the amount of $1,500 for the CSM 

• Check No. 141546 in the amount of $125 for the CMP Amendment 
GRAEF RESPONSE: Checks were picked up at City Hall by GRAEF and destroyed. 
Correct fees were paid via credit card. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

City of Franklin – Marion Ecks -4- July 28, 2025 

 
2024-0222.00 

 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 
 
Note that all resolutions and ordinances are drafted with a standard set of condition 
relating to development timelines and requirements, approvals from other jurisdictions 
and departments, etc.  Staff may recommend additional conditions based on review of 
these applications for compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance.  
GRAEF RESPONSE: Noted. 
 
Please let me know should you have any further questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Benjamin Langemeier, P.E. 
Project Manager 



The Avenue 

275 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300 

Milwaukee, WI 53203 

414 / 259 1500 

414 / 259 0037 fax 
www.graef-usa.com 

 

 

July 1, 2025 
 
City of Franklin 
9229 W Loomis Rd 
Franklin, WI 53132 
 
SUBJECT: Natural Resources Protection Plan (NRPP) for Costco - Franklin 
 
 
To whom it may concern: 
 
GRAEF was retained by Costco Wholesale to complete site development plans for the area located at 1 
Northwestern Mutual Way in Franklin, Wisconsin (Subject Property). As part of Franklin’s required planning 
efforts, onsite natural resources were identified and mapped, and a NRPP was created. The NRPP, 
including write-up, tables, and figures, are attached to this letter for review and approval. 
 
For questions or comments regarding the NRPP, please use the contact information listed below. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Alexander J. Linton 
Environmental/Wetland Scientist  
Alex.Linton@greaf-usa.com 
(414) 266-9030 
 
 
Enclosures 
 
NRPP Write Up 
 
Table 15-3.0502  
Table 15.3.0503 
Table 15.3.0505 
Table 1: Existing Resources and Acreages 
 
Figure 1: Site Boundary 
Figure 2: Easements and Neighboring Property Boundaries  
Figure 3: Existing Natural Resources  
Figure 4: Disturbed Natural Resource Features 
Figure 5: Elevations  

July 3, 2025

mailto:Alex.Linton@greaf-usa.com


 
Natural Resource Protection Plan 

Costco – Franklin 
July 2025 

Natural Resources Protection Plan 

 

A. Proposed Name: Costco – Franklin  
 

B. Location: 1 Northwestern Mutual Way, Franklin, Wisconsin (Subject Property) 
 

C. Contact Information 
a. Stephen Cross 

1955 Raymond Drive, Suite 119 
Northbrook, IL 60062 
Cell: (847) 208-8595 
Office: (847) 498-0800 
Email: c_stephencross@costco.com 
 

D. Date of Submittal: June 30, 2025 
 

E. Site Boundary: See Figure 1 
 

F. Lot Lines, Right-of-Way Lines, and Easements: See Figure 2 
 

G. Existing Streets: Streets names and locations identified on each figure map  
 

H. Easements and Neighboring Property Boundaries: One water easement is located within the Subject Property. See 
Figure 3 for specific location. 
 

I. Location and Extent of Existing Natural Resource Features: Mapped natural resource features within the Subject 
Property include six wetlands and two stormwater ponds. See Table 1 and Figure 4 for specific locations and 
acreages.  

Note: all existing natural resource features within the Subject Property are manmade and artificial as the anticipated 
future land use of the Subject Property was and is for development. Prior to 2005, land use within the Subject 
Property consisted of a drive-in movie theater, driveways, and sidewalks with no preexisting natural resources. The 
wetlands currently on the Subject Property developed as a result of water collecting in poorly graded low points  
located near and around a construction staging areas (visible in historic aerial photos until 2012). Approved artificial 
determinations for the wetlands are currently being reviewed and are anticipated through the Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources (WDNR). Ponds within the Subject Property are manmade for stormwater collection. Trees 
within the Subject Property are landscape trees, and do not meet the criteria for either young or mature woodlots.  

J. Disturbed and Preserved Natural Resource Features: See Table 1 (below) and Figure 5 for specific locations and 
acreages. 
 
Note: Mitigative measures and preservation areas  for impacted natural resource features are not anticipated as all 
natural resource features within the Subject Property are manmade, artificial, and landscaped.   
 

K. Maximum Sheet Size of "Natural Resource Protection Plan”: Based on maximum sheet sizes for applicable plats, 
plans, and maps. 
 

L. Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations: See Tables 15-3.0502, 15-3.0503, and 15-3.0505 (below). 
 

 

mailto:c_stephencross@costco.com


 
Natural Resource Protection Plan 

Costco – Franklin 
July 2025 

TABLE 15-3.0502 

Worksheet for the Calculation of Base Site Area for Both Residential and Nonresidential Development 

STEP 1: 
Indicate the total gross site area (in acres) as determined by an actual on-site boundary 
survey of the property. 

20.18 acres 

STEP 2: 
Subtract (-) land which constitutes any existing dedicated public street rights-of-way, land 
located within the ultimate road rights- of-way of existing roads, the rights-of-way of major 
utilities, and any dedicated public park and/or school site area. 

0 acres 

STEP 3: 
Subtract (-) land which, as a part of a previously approved development or land division, 
was reserved for open space. 

N/A 

STEP 4: 

In the case of “Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations” for a pro- posed residential use, 
subtract (-) the land proposed for non-residential uses; 
or 
In the case of “Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations” for a pro- posed nonresidential 
use, subtract (-) the land proposed for residential uses. 

N/A 

STEP 5: Equals ”Base Site Area” 20.18 acres 

 

TABLE 15-3.0503 

Natural Resource 
Feature 

Protection Standard Based Upon Zoning District 
Type (circle applicable standard from Table 15-
4.0100 for the type of zoning district in which the 
parcel is located) 

Acres of 
Land in 
Resource 
Feature 

Acres of Land 
to be Preserved 

Acres of 
Land to be 
Impacted 

Acres of 
Land to be 
Mitigated 

Agricultural 
District 

Residential 
District 

Non-Residential 
District 

    

Steep Slopes  

10-19% 0% 60% 40% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

20-30% 65% 75% 70% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

30%+ 90% 85% 80% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

Woodlands & Forest  
Mature Woodland 
Grove 70% 70% 70% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

Young Woodland 
Grove 50% 50% 50% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

Lake & Ponds 100% 100% 100% 0.67 0.000 0.67 0.67 

Streams 100% 100% 100% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

Shore Buffer 100% 100% 100% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

Floodplain/Floodlands 100% 100% 100% 0.000 0.000 0.000 - 

Wetland Setback 100% 100% 100% 2.27 0.78 1.49 1.49 

Wetland Buffers 100% 100% 100% 3.39 1.14 2.25 2.25 

Wetlands & Shoreland 
wetlands 100% 100% 100% 0.95 0.33 0.62 0.62 

Total Resource Protection Land (Total Acres of Land in Resource Required 
to be Protected) 

= 4.39* acres 

*Note: All ponds and wetlands onsite are artificially created. See Item I above for detailed information. 

 

 



 
Natural Resource Protection Plan 

Costco – Franklin 
July 2025 

TABLE 15.3-0505 

STEP 1: 

CALCULATE MINIMUM REQUIRED LANDSCAPE SURFACE: 
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 in Table 15-3.0502): 20.18 
Multiple by Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) (see specific zoning district LSR 
standard): X 0.10 
Equals MINIMUM REQUIRED ON-SITE LANDSCAPE SURFACE =  

2.018 acres 

STEP 2: 

CALCULATE NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA: 
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 in Table 15-3.0502): 20.18 
Subtract Total Resource Protection Land from Table 15-3.0503) or Minimum Required 
Landscape Surface (from Step 1 above), whichever is greater: 2.018 
Equals NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA = 

18.162 acres 

STEP 3: 

CALCULATE MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE: 
Take Net Buildable Site Area (from Step 2 above): 18.162 
Multiple by Maximum Net Floor Area Ratio (NFAR) 
(see specific nonresidential zoning district NFAR standard): X 0.70 
Equals MAXIMUM NET FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE = 

12.71 acres 

STEP 4: 

CALCULATE MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE: 
Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 of Table 15-3.0502): 20.18 
Multiple by Maximum Gross Floor Area Ratio (GFAR) 
(see specific nonresidential zoning district GFAR standard): 0.70 
Equals MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA YIELD OF SITE = 

12.71 acres 

STEP 5: 

DETERMINE MAXIMUM PERMITTED FLOOR AREA OF SITE: 
Take the lowest of Maximum Net Floor Area Yield of Site (from Step 3 
above) or Maximum Gross Floor Area Yield of Site (from Step 4 above): 

12.71 acres 

Multiple results by 43,560 for maximum floor area in square feet  553,647 square feet 

 
TABLE 1: Existing Resources and Acreages 

Existing Resource  Total Acres  Acres Impacted Acres Not Impacted  
Wetland One  0.23 0.03 0.2 
Wetland One Buffer 1.59 0.84 0.75 
Wetland One Setback 1.42 0.92 0.5 
Wetland Two 0.29 0.16 0.13 
Wetland Two Buffer See Wetland One See Wetland One See Wetland One 
Wetland Two Setback See Wetland One See Wetland One See Wetland One 
Wetland Three 0.19 0.19 0 
Wetland Three Buffer 0.55 0.53 0.02 
Wetland Three Setback See Wetland One See Wetland One See Wetland One 
Wetland Four 0.08 0.08 0 
Wetland Four Buffer 0.26 0.26 0 
Wetland Four Setback 0.24 0.24 0 
Wetland Five 0.11 0.11 0 
Wetland Five Buffer 0.99 0.62 0.37 
Wetland Five Setback 0.61 0.33 0.28 
Wetland Six 0.05 0.05 0 
Wetland Six Buffer See Wetland Five See Wetland Five See Wetland Five 
Wetland Six Setback See Wetland Five See Wetland Five See Wetland Five 
Pond One  0.06 0.06 0 

Pond Two 0.61 0.61 0 

*Note: All ponds and wetlands onsite are artificially created. See Item I above for detailed information. 

 



 Natural Resource Protection Plan 
Costco – Franklin 

July 2025 

 

Figure 1 
Site Boundary  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 Natural Resource Protection Plan 
Costco – Franklin 

July 2025 

 

 

Figure 2 
Easements and Neighboring Property Boundaries  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



&

Right of Way

&

Right of Way

S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

W DREXEL AVE W DREXEL AVE

S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

S
31

S
T

S
T

S
 3

1S
T

 S
T

241

241

NO
RTHW

ESTERN M
UTUAL W

AY

NORTHW
ES

TE
R

N
 M

U
T

U
A

L
 W

A
Y

Source: MCLIO

U
se

r:
 1

95
6

D
at

e 
S

av
ed

: 7
/2

/2
02

5 
1:

41
 P

M

Proj. Number: 2024-0222

FIGURE 2

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

COSTCO FRANKLIN

EASEMENTS AND NEIGHBORING PROPERTY BOUNDARIES

1 in = 150 ft

0 75 150

Feet

o

Legend
Site Boundary

Easements

Electric

Water

Wetland

Conservation

Detention Pond

Parcels



 Natural Resource Protection Plan 
Costco – Franklin 

July 2025 

 

Figure 3 
Existing Natural Resource Features 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

W DREXEL AVE W DREXEL AVE

S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

S
31

S
T

S
T

S
 3

1S
T

 S
T

241

241

NO
RTHW

ESTERN M
UTAL W

AY

Stormwater
Pond: P2
00.61 Ac

&

Stormwater
Pond: P1
00.06 Ac

&

Wetland
Setback:
00.24 Ac

&

Wetland
Setback:
01.42 Ac

&

Wetland
Setback:
00.61 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:

00.99 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:
01.59 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:
00.55 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:
00.26 Ac

&
Wetland: W-6

00.05 Ac

&

Wetland: W-4
00.08 Ac

Wetland: W-2
00.29 Ac

&Wetland: W-5
00.11 Ac

Wetland: W-1
00.23 Ac

&

Wetland: W-3
00.19 Ac

Source: MCLIO

U
se

r:
 1

95
6

D
at

e 
S

av
ed

: 7
/2

/2
02

5 
1:

41
 P

M

Proj. Number: 2024-0222

FIGURE 3

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

COSTCO FRANKLIN

EXISTING NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES

1 in = 150 ft

0 75 150

Feet

o

Legend
Site Boundary

Wetland Delineation

Parcels

Wetland Buffer

Wetland Setback

Stormwater Pond

Improvement Footprint

Building

Parking Lot

Sidewalk

Landscaping

Pond



 Natural Resource Protection Plan 
Costco – Franklin 

July 2025 

 

Figure 4 
Disturbed Natural Resource Features  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

W DREXEL AVE W DREXEL AVE

S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

S
31

S
T

S
T

S
 3

1S
T

 S
T

241

241

NO
RTHW

ESTERN M
UTAL W

AY

&

Stormwater
Pond: P2
00.61 Ac

&

Stormwater
Pond: P1
00.06 Ac

&Wetland
Setback:
00.33 Ac&

Wetland
Setback:
00.80 Ac

&

Wetland
Setback:
00.12 Ac

&
Wetland

Setback:
00.24 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:

00.62 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:

00.18 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:
00.41 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:

00.08 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:

00.17 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:

00.53 Ac

&

Wetland
Buffer:
00.26 Ac

&

Wetland: W-2
00.16 Ac

&

Wetland: W-3
00.19 Ac

&

Wetland: W-4
00.08 Ac

&Wetland: W-5
00.11 Ac

&

Wetland: W-1
00.03 Ac

&

Wetland: W-1
00.03 Ac

Source: MCLIO

U
se

r:
 1

95
6

D
at

e 
S

av
ed

: 7
/2

/2
02

5 
1:

41
 P

M

Proj. Number: 2024-0222

FIGURE 4

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

COSTCO FRANKLIN

DISTURBED NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES

1 in = 150 ft

0 75 150

Feet

o

Legend
Parcels

Site Boundary

Improvement Footprint

Building

Parking Lot

Sidewalk

Landscaping

Pond

Natural Resource
Features

Wetland Delineation

Wetland Buffer

Wetland Setback

Stormwater Pond

Disturbed Natural
Resource Features

Wetland

Wetland Buffer

Wetland Setback

Pond



 Natural Resource Protection Plan 
Costco – Franklin 

July 2025 

 

Figure 5 
Existing and Proposed Contours 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

W DREXEL AVE W DREXEL AVE

S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

S
31

S
T

S
T

S
 3

1S
T

 S
T

241

241

NO
RTHW

ESTERN M
UTUAL W

AY

NORTHW
ES

TE
R

N
 M

U
T

U
A

L
 W

A
Y

74
4

742

741

740

739

737

73
0

735

733

732

730

72
9

72
8

735

734

733

732

731

729

72872
7

748

738

736

74
7

74
6

745

742

748

74
7

74
5

744
743

74
2

741

74
1

73
7

73
6

73
2

747

746

745

743

742

74
3

74
2

741

731

730

75
5

75
4

75
2

751

750

74
9

74
8

755

748

750

749748747

75
2

751

74
8

748

74
6

746

744

74
3

742
741

74
2

74
1

74
0

74
6

73
9

74
0

73
8

746

744

743

743

742

745

744

735

733

732

731

749

74
8

74
7

745

746

744

745

744

747

745

745

74
4

743

739

734

732

731

751

750
75
2

75
1

75
0

750

748

746

73
8

73
6

73
5

737

736

734

733

737

73
6

746

745

74
1

74
0

73
9 738

752

743

74
5

747

746

74
5

74
3

744

743

74474
3

74
2

74
1

741

741

740
739

740

73
9

73
8

73
7

73
5

73
4

72
6

72
5

754

753

752

751

750

747

749

74
8

74
8

74
8

74
7

74
7

74
7

74
6

746
745

74
5

744

744

74
3

744

74
3

741

74
1

740

740

73
873
6

734

733

747
745

742

74
1

739

73
7

73
0

746

744

743

74
1

740

731

738

736

731

73
7

74
7

734

727

73
3

73
5

740

738

74
0

739

73
9

74
0

73
8

734

734

75
0

73
8

753

752

74
9

747

746
75
1

749

747

746

75
5

74
7

74
6

745

740

744

73
9

745

73
7

73
4

744

748

743

74
6

745

747

743

742

741

740

73
8

73
8

735

735

733

736

75
4

748

749

741

741

743

74
3

74
2

739

737

735

738

738

737736

736

73
5

735

74
6

74
5

738

73
7

737

736735

736

735

756 75
5

74
8

74
7

748

742

746

74
6

74
7

743

74
4

743

74
2

742

74
2

74
1

740

74
1

74
0

741
739

73
9

73
9

73
8

738

73
5

75
4

754

754

753
753

752
752

75
2

752

75
1

75
1

751

751

751

750

748

74
7

748

747

747

747

746

747

74
6

74
7

745

74
6

744

744

74
3

742

745

745

745

740

744
743

74
4

74
4

744

74
4

744

743

74
3

742

742

742

74
2

740

741

741

74
0

74
1

741

740

740

73
9

74
0

739

74
0

740

740

739

738

73
8

73
8

738

737

73
6

735

73
6

73
5

735

734

734
731

731

73
1

73
1

730

72
6

755

752

743

738

734

734

734

73
4

731

745

74
474

3

74
674
2

743

741

747

744
739

738

74
0 735

74
1

73
6

752

751

75
275

1

75
0

75
2

75
0

744

751

748

74
6

742

749

750

74
9

748

747

748

747

74
6

74
7

746

74
7

746

74
3

74
2

74274
1

740

73
9

738

73
1

73
3

746

745

74
5

73
7

734

74
3

752 750

75
1

74
8

745743

744

742

74
6

74
5

74
3

752

751

748

74
8

748

74
5

74
4

74
4

743

752

751 749

74
9

748
749

748

74
7

747

74
7

74
7

745

74
3

0

744

744

744

743

74
3

743

73
5

74
8

Source: MCLIO

U
se

r:
 1

95
6

P
at

h:
 X

:\M
L\

20
24

\2
02

40
22

2\
D

es
ig

n\
G

IS
\C

os
tc

oF
ra

nk
lin

N
R

P
P

\C
os

tc
oF

ra
nk

lin
N

R
P

P.
ap

rx
D

at
e 

S
av

ed
: 7

/2
/2

02
5 

1:
41

 P
M

Proj. Number: 2024-0222

FIGURE 5

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

COSTCO FRANKLIN

EXISTING & PROPOSED CONTOURS

1 in = 150 ft

0 75 150

Feet

o

Legend
Site Boundary

Existing Contours

Proposed Contours



1" = 500'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 500250

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 1

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH
SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ
SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS 5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI
FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 2

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 3

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 4

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

:HWODQGV GHOLQHDWHG E\ CHGDUEXUJ VFLHQFH� LLC� RQ
FHEUXDU\ 2�� 2002 SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 5

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

:HWODQGV GHOLQHDWHG E\ CHGDUEXUJ VFLHQFH� LLC� RQ
FHEUXDU\ 2�� 2002 SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 6

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

:HWODQGV GHOLQHDWHG E\ CHGDUEXUJ
VFLHQFH� LLC� RQ FHEUXDU\ 2�� 2002
SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 7

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

:HWODQGV GHOLQHDWHG E\ CHGDUEXUJ VFLHQFH� LLC� RQ
FHEUXDU\ 2�� 2002 SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 8

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

CRQVHUYDWLRQ AUHD SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 9

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

CRQVHUYDWLRQ AUHD SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 10

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

CRQVHUYDWLRQ AUHD SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 11

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

CRQVHUYDWLRQ AUHD SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 12

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

CRQVHUYDWLRQ AUHD SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



1" = 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 200100

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 13

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

CRQVHUYDWLRQ AUHD SHU CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3���

03�1��2025



( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 300150

S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 14

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

03�1��2025



S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 15

S8R9E<2R'S CERTIFICATE

STATE 2F :ISC2NSIN `
                  �SS
:A8.ESHA C28NT<   `

I� -2HN P� CAS8CCI� PURIHVVLRQDO LDQG SXUYH\RU� GR KHUHE\ FHUWLI\�

THAT I KDYH VXUYH\HG� GLYLGHG DQG PDSSHG D GLYLVLRQ RI D SDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR�
�3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG
SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS 5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI
FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ� ERXQGHG DQG GHVFULEHG DV IROORZV�

CRPPHQFLQJ DW WKH NRUWKHDVW FRUQHU RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI VDLG SHFWLRQ 12� WKHQFH SRXWK ��� �3' 22"
:HVW DORQJ WKH NRUWK OLQH RI VDLG 1�� SHFWLRQ D GLVWDQFH RI �1�5� IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH :HVW OLQH RI SRXWK 2�WK
SWUHHW DQG WKH SRLQW RI EHJLQQLQJ RI ODQGV WR EH GHVFULEHG� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 01' 0�" :HVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH
���5 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 0�� 0�' 15" :HVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 1��0� IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH NRUWK OLQH
RI NRUWKZHVWHUQ 0XWXDO :D\� WKHQFH SRXWK ��� 3�' 0�" :HVW DORQJ VDLG NRUWK OLQH ����2 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH
SRXWK ��� 55' 0�" :HVW DORQJ VDLG NRUWK OLQH 12��0� IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH :HVW OLQH RI VDLG NRUWKZHVWHUQ
0XWXDO :D\� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 02' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 11��00 IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH SRXWK OLQH RI VDLG
NRUWKZHVWHUQ 0XWXDO :D\� WKHQFH NRUWK ��� 55' 0�" EDVW DORQJ VDLG SRXWK OLQH 150�00 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH
SRXWK �5� 00' 1�" EDVW DORQJ VDLG SRXWK OLQH 51�21 IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH :HVW OLQH RI SRXWK 2�WK SWUHHW� WKHQFH
SRXWK 05� 1�' 1�" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 150�0� IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 02' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG
:HVW OLQH 2�5��3 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK ��� 5�' 30" :HVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 15�00 IHHW WR D SRLQW�
WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 02' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 2�5�01 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK ��� 5�' 30" :HVW
DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 5�00 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 02' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 100�00 IHHW WR D
SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK ��� 5�' 30" :HVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 5�00 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 02' 30" EDVW
DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH ������ IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH NRUWK ��� 5�' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 5�00 IHHW WR D
SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 02' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 1���22 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH NRUWK ��� 5�' 30" EDVW
DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 15�50 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 02' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 3�3��� IHHW WR D
SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 0�� 32' 22" :HVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 1����0 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 01' �5"
EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 22���� IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 32� 50' ��" :HVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 10���3
IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH NRUWK OLQH RI :HVW 'UH[HO AYHQXH�

(FRQWLQXHG RQ VKHHW 1� )

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

03�1��2025



S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 16

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

S8R9E<2R'S CERTIFICATE

(FRQWLQXHG IURP VKHHW 15 )

WKHQFH SRXWK ��� 00' 2�" :HVW DORQJ VDLG NRUWK OLQH 1153��2 IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH EDVW OLQH RI SRXWK 31VW
SWUHHW� WKHQFH NRUWK 00� 02' 11" EDVW DORQJ VDLG EDVW OLQH 2322��2 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK ��� 5�' ��"
EDVW DORQJ VDLG EDVW OLQH 5�00 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH NRUWK 00� 02' 11" EDVW DORQJ VDLG EDVW OLQH 2����� IHHW WR
D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK ��� �3' 22" :HVW 52�52 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH NRUWK 00� 02' 1�" EDVW 331�3� IHHW WR D
SRLQW LQ WKH SRXWK OLQH RI CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� 5���� WKHQFH NRUWK ��� �1' 30" EDVW DORQJ VDLG SRXWK OLQH
������ IHHW WR D SRLQW�  WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 00' 2�" EDVW 1�5��3 IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH NRUWK ��� �2' 5�" EDVW
315�01 IHHW WR D SRLQW LQ WKH :HVW OLQH RI SRXWK 2�WK SWUHHW� WKHQFH SRXWK 0�� 3�' 52" :HVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW
OLQH ����� IHHW WR D SRLQW� WKHQFH SRXWK 00� 00' 2�" EDVW DORQJ VDLG :HVW OLQH 11��35 IHHW WR WKH SRLQW RI
EHJLQQLQJ�

SDLG ODQG FRQWDLQV 3���0���� VTXDUH IHHW RU ����001 DFUHV�

THAT I KDYH PDGH WKH VXUYH\� ODQG GLYLVLRQ DQG PDS E\ WKH GLUHFWLRQ RI� THE N2RTH:ESTERN
08T8AL LIFE INS8RANCE C20PAN<

THAT WKH PDS LV D FRUUHFW UHSUHVHQWDWLRQ RI DOO WKH H[WHULRU ERXQGDULHV RI WKH ODQG VXUYH\HG DQG WKH
ODQG GLYLVLRQ WKHUHRI PDGH�

THAT I KDYH IXOO\ FRPSOLHG ZLWK CKDSWHU 23��3� RI WKH :LVFRQVLQ SWDWXWHV DQG WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ
8QLILHG 'HYHORSPHQW 2UGLQDQFH 'LYLVLRQ�15 LQ VXUYH\LQJ� GLYLGLQJ� DQG PDSSLQJ WKH VDPH�

(SEAL)
FLHOG GDWH -2HN P� CAS8CCI

PR2FESSI2NAL LAN' S8R9E<2R   S�2055

CIT< 2F FRAN.LIN C2002N C28NCIL APPR29AL 	 'E'ICATI2N ACCEPTANCE

APPR29E' E\ WKH CRPPRQ CRXQFLO RI WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ E\ RHVROXWLRQ NR� 

VLJQHG RQ WKLV � GD\ RI � 2025�

-RKQ NHOVRQ� 0D\RU

SKLUOH\ RREHUWV� CLW\ FOHUN

03�1��2025



S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 17

2:NER'S CERTIFICATE

THE N2RTH:ESTERN 08T8AL LIFE INS8RANCE C20PAN<� D FRPSDQ\ GXO\ RUJDQL]HG DQG H[LVWLQJ
XQGHU DQG E\ YLUWXH RI WKH ODZV RI WKH SWDWH RI :LVFRQVLQ� DV RZQHU� FHUWLILHV WKDW VDLG FRUSRUDWLRQ KDV FDXVHG WKH
ODQG GHVFULEHG RQ WKLV PDS WR EH VXUYH\HG� GLYLGHG� GHGLFDWHG DQG PDSSHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH UHTXLUHPHQWV RI
CKDSWHU 23��3� RI WKH :LVFRQVLQ SWDWXWHV DQG WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ 8QLILHG 'HYHORSPHQW 2UGLQDQFH 'LYLVLRQ�15�

THE N2RTH:ESTERN 08T8AL LIFE INS8RANCE C20PAN<� GRHV IXUWKHU FHUWLI\ WKDW WKLV PDS LV
UHTXLUHG E\ S�23��10 RU 23��12 WR EH VXEPLWWHG WR WKH IROORZLQJ IRU DSSURYDO RU REMHFWLRQ�  CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ

IN :LWQHVV :KHUHRI� THE N2RTH:ESTERN 08T8AL LIFE INS8RANCE C20PAN< KDV FDXVHG WKHVH
SUHVHQWV WR EH

VLJQHG E\ BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB LWV BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� WKLV  GD\ RI � 2025�

THE N2RTH:ESTERN 08T8AL LIFE
INS8RANCE C20PAN<

STATE 2F `
�SS

 C28NT< `

PERS2NALL< FDPH EHIRUH PH WKLV    GD\ RI � 2025�

 RI WKH DERYH QDPHG THE N2RTH:ESTERN 08T8AL LIFE INS8RANCE C20PAN<�
WR PH NQRZQ WR EH WKH SHUVRQ ZKR H[HFXWHG WKH IRUHJRLQJ LQVWUXPHQW� DQG WR PH NQRZQ WR EH WKH

 RI VDLG FRPSDQ\� DQG DFNQRZOHGJHG WKDW KH H[HFXWHG WKH IRUHJRLQJ LQVWUXPHQW�

(SEAL)                                                              

NRWDU\ PXEOLF� SWDWH RI 

0\ CRPPLVVLRQ E[SLUHV 

THIS INSTR80ENT 'RAFTE' %< -2HN P� CAS8CCI� S�2055

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

03�1��2025



S:\5169608\dwg\ 169608 CS10.dwg \ SHEET 18
THIS INSTR80ENT 'RAFTE' %< -2HN P� CAS8CCI� S�2055

CERTIFIE' S8R9E< 0AP N2� BBBBBBB
PDUW RI PDUFHO 1� LQ CHUWLILHG SXUYH\ 0DS NR� �3��� EHLQJ LQ WKH  SRXWKZHVW 1��  DQG SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH
NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG WKH NRUWKHDVW 1�� DQG  SRXWKHDVW 1�� RI WKH SRXWKHDVW 1��� DOO LQ SHFWLRQ 12� LQ TRZQVKLS
5 NRUWK� RDQJH 21 EDVW� LQ WKH CLW\ RI FUDQNOLQ� 0LOZDXNHH CRXQW\� :LVFRQVLQ�

03�1��2025



 

 

 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
THE NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

PROPOSED 2 LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
1 NORTHWESTERN MUTUAL WAY, FRANKLIN, WI 

 
 
A division of a part of Parcel 1, in Certified Survey Map No. 7389, being in the Southwest 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 
of the Northeast 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, all in Section 12, in Township 
5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 12; thence South 87° 43' 22" West 
along the North line of said 1/4 Section a distance of 91.57 feet to a point if the West line of South 27th Street and 
the point of beginning of lands to be described; thence South 00° 01' 07" West along said West line 7.45 feet to a 
point; thence South 07° 07' 15" West along said West line 17.08 feet to a point in the North line of Northwestern 
Mutual Way; thence South 47° 34' 06" West along said North line 78.92 feet to a point; thence South 89° 55' 07" 
West along said North line 128.07 feet to a point in the West line of said Northwestern Mutual Way; thence South 
00° 02' 30" East along said West line 119.00 feet to a point in the South line of said Northwestern Mutual Way; 
thence North 89° 55' 07" East along said South line 150.00 feet to a point; thence South 45° 00' 14" East along 
said South line 51.21 feet to a point in the West line of South 27th Street; thence South 05° 19' 16" East along 
said West line 150.09 feet to a point; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 285.83 feet to a point; 
thence South 89° 57' 30" West along said West line 15.00 feet to a point; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along 
said West line 275.01 feet to a point; thence South 89° 57' 30" West along said West line 5.00 feet to a point; 
thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 100.00 feet to a point; thence South 89° 57' 30" West along 
said West line 5.00 feet to a point; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 498.88 feet to a point; 
thence North 89° 57' 30" East along said West line 5.00 feet to a point; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said 
West line 176.22 feet to a point; thence North 89° 57' 30" East along said West line 15.50 feet to a point; thence 
South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 393.48 feet to a point; thence South 04° 32' 22" West along said 
West line 168.40 feet to a point; thence South 00° 01' 45" East along said West line 229.74 feet to a point; thence 
South 32° 50' 46" West along said West line 104.83 feet to a point in the North line of West Drexel Avenue; 
thence South 88° 00' 24" West along said North line 1153.42 feet to a point in the East line of South 31st Street; 
thence North 00° 02' 11" East along said East line 2322.62 feet to a point; thence South 89° 57' 49" East along 
said East line 5.00 feet to a point; thence North 00° 02' 11" East along said East line 266.86 feet to a point; thence 
South 87° 43' 22" West 52.52 feet to a point; thence North 00° 02' 14" East 331.39 feet to a point in the South line 
of Certified Survey Map No. 5794; thence North 87° 41' 30" East along said South line 949.76 feet to a point;  
thence South 00° 00' 27" East 165.93 feet to a point; thence North 87° 42' 58" East 315.01 feet to a point in the 
West line of South 27th Street; thence South 04° 34' 52" West along said West line 48.96 feet to a point; thence 
South 00° 00' 27" East along said West line 117.35 feet to the point of beginning. 
Said land contains 3,480,447 square feet or 79.9001 acres. 
 
Prepared by: John P. Casucci, PLS 
Date:  March 19, 2025 
Project No. 169608 



 

 

 
 
 
 

Legal Description 
Proposed Lot 1  (South Lot) 
W. Drexel Ave, Franklin, WI  

 
Lot 1, in Certified Survey Map No.   , being a part of Parcel 1, Certified Survey Map No. 7389, being 
in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 12, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section; thence South 88° 00' 24" West along 
the South line of said 1/4 Section a distance of 152.80 feet to a point; thence North 01° 59' 36" West 65.00 feet to 
a point in the North line of Drexel Avenue and the point of beginning of lands to be described: 
thence South 88° 00' 24" West along said North line 451.36 feet to a point; thence Northwesterly along an arc of a 
curve to the right with an arc length of 48.14 feet, whose radius is 30.00 feet and whose chord bears North 46° 01' 
04" West 43.14 feet to a point; thence North 00° 02' 45" West 97.10 feet to a point; thence Northwesterly along an 
arc of a curve to the left with an arc length of 357.37 feet, whose radius is 475.00 feet and whose chord bears 
North 21° 35' 44" West 349.00 feet to a point; thence North 43° 08' 56" West 425.37 feet to a point; thence North 
41° 12' 13" West 80.21 feet to a point; thence North 30° 52' 34" West 88.10 feet to a point; thence North 44° 43' 
13" East 85.81 feet to a point; thence Northeasterly along an arc of a curve to the left with an arc length of 106.87 
feet, whose radius is 151.25 feet and whose chord bears North 64° 53' 29" East 104.66 feet to a point; thence 
North 45° 05' 01" East 53.24 feet to a point; thence South 45° 02' 30" East 165.89 feet to a point; thence North 
44° 57' 30" East 467.88 feet to a point; thence North 89° 57' 30" East 407.80 feet to a point in the West line of 
South 27th Street; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 183.93 feet to a point; thence North 89° 57' 
30" East along said West line 5.00 feet to a point; thence South 00° 02' 30" East along said West line 176.22 feet 
to a point; thence North 89° 57' 30" East along said West line 15.50 feet to a point; thence South 00° 02' 30" East 
along said West line 393.48 feet to a point; thence South 04° 32' 22" West along said West line 168.40 feet to a 
point; thence South 00° 01' 45" East along said West line 229.74 feet to a point; thence South 32° 50' 46" West 
along said West line 104.83 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Said land contains 878,852 square feet or 20.1757 acres. 
 
 
Project No.:  169608 
Date:   March 20, 2025 
Prepared by: John P. Casucci, PLS 2055 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\5169608\doc\Proposed Lot 1.docx 



ST
M

STM

STM STM

STM

STM

SAN SAN SAN

G
G

G G G G G G G

E
E

E E

ST
M

STM

STM STM

STM

ST
M

STM

ST
M

ST
M

E E E E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E E E

E

E
E E

E

E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E E E E E EE

E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E
E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E E

E

E

STM

STM

STM

STM

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

T T
T T T T T T T T T TT

T T T T T

T

T T T

T T T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T
T

T

FO

FO

FO

T T

T

T
TW DREXEL AVENUE

S
 2

7T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F.F.E. = 752.00

WET POND

CAUTIO
N

ENTRY

EXIT
CAUTION

CAUTION

CAUTIO
N

CAUTION

CAUTION

CAUTION

CAUTION

C
A

U
T

IO
N C

A
U

T
IO

N

C
A

U
T

IO
N C

A
U

T
IO

N C
A

U
T

IO
N C

A
U

T
IO

N

CAUTION

CAUTION

CAUTION

CAUTION

CAUTIO
N

WET POND

OVERALL SITE PLAN

C300

COSTCO WHOLESALE
FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

05/19/2025

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

SCALE:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 2024-0222

TRY

BRL

BTP

AS NOTED

X:
\M

L\2
02

4\2
02

40
22

2\D
es

ign
\C

ivi
l\M

isc
\C

_0
0_

C3
00

_O
ve

ra
llS

ite
_0

22
2

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE:

PROJECT INFORMATION:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

NO. DATE REVISIONS BY

NWC OF W DREXEL AVE & S 27TH ST
FRANKLIN, WI

1 2 3 4 5 6

D

C

B

A

654321

A

B

C

D

275 West Wisconsin Avenue
Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203-3318
414 / 259 1500

5/2
7/2

02
5 1

1:0
6 A

M

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

LEGEND



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of August 5, 2025 
 

Certified Survey Map 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of this Certified Survey Map 
to create two commercial lots, subject to the conditions set forth in this report and the attached resolution.  

Project name: Midland Commercial Development – Two lot Certified Survey Map 
Property Owner: Megna Living Trust 
Applicant: Steve Rolfe, Midland Commercial Development Corp. 
Agent: Paul Imig, PE, The Sigma Group  
Property Address/TKN: 10001 W Church Street / 795 9999 007 
Aldermanic District: District 2 
Zoning District: B-R – Regional Business District 
Staff Planner: Luke Hamill, Associate Planner 
 

Please note: 
• Recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft resolution. 
• Suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution. 

 
Project Description/Analysis  
The applicant is seeking approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the creation of two commercial 
lots on W Church Street and Highway 100. The total site is 6 acres. The site currently has the existing 
Speedway gas station on the north side of the site. Lot 1 will include the current speedway, while Lot 2 
is reserved for a future grocery store development. The applicant has provided Site Intensity and 
Capacity Calculations for both proposed lots. Lot 1 is compliant with the setbacks for the zoning district, 
and the Speedway structures conform to the zoning standards of the B-R district. 
 
The subject site is zoned B-R and the proposed commercial uses are an allowed use in this zoning district, 
as the gas station was approved by Special Use (now Conditional Use) in 1992 for a gas station. Both 
lots will be served by public sanitary sewer and public water supply.  
 
The site abuts the same B-R zoning district to the east, R-MF Multi-Family to the south and west, and 
R-SR to the north which includes the Mission Hills Subdivision. There is currently a landscape 
bufferyard between the gas station to the north and the subdivision, which was required as part of the 
original 1992 approval for the gas station. 
 
In order to approve the CSM, the Plan Commission and Common Council must find that the proposed 
land division meets the requirements for a CSM as provided in the Unified Development Ordinance, 
including all standards for development as provided in the following sections of the UDO: 

• Division 15-9-13 Minor Land Division 
• Division 15-8 Subdivision Standards 
• Division 15-8.0100 Required Improvements for Land Divisions 

Item E.2. 



 
 

2 

• Division 15-8.0200 Construction 

 
Natural resource protection 
The applicant received an exemption determination from the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources, however the U.S Army Corps of Engineers claimed jurisdiction stating that wetland 1 is 
subject to federal wetland regulations, therefore, the local protection standards of the UDO apply to the 
northern wetland (0.5 ac). 
 
The applicant has plans to apply for a Natural Resource Special Exception to have cross-access between 
the two properties. It is a requirement of a CSM for natural resources to be placed in a Conservation 
Easement. Staff suggests that the Conservation Easement recording be postponed until after the 
applicant has received Site Plan and NRSE approval. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
City Development Staff recommends approval of this Certified Survey Map to create two commercial 
lots, subject to the conditions set forth in this report and the attached resolution. 
 
Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 236.34(1m)(f), the approval authority shall take action within 90 days of 
submittal unless the time is extended by agreement with the subdivider. This application was submitted 
on June 11, 2025; therefore, the Common Council shall take action before September 9, 2025.  
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
          [Draft 07-30-2025] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP, BEING A REDIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990 IN THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 

EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
(MEGNA LIVING TRUST, PROPERTY OWNER) 

(STEVE ROLFE, MIDLAND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
APPLICANT) 

(10001 W CHURCH STREET) 
              
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for approval 
of a certified survey map, such map being a redivision of   
 
Certified Survey Map No. 3990, being a part of the Southeast ¼ and Northeast ¼ of the 
Southwest ¼ of Section 8, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee 
County, Wisconsin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan 
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such proposed 
certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain conditions. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the 
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Steve Rolfe, Midland 
Commercial Development Corp., as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by 
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and made by 
the applicant, prior to recording. 

 
2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this 

Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal 
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-8-10 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development and building 
permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such Code and 
Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time. 

 
3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of 

separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the City of 
Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form and content as 
may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or designee to further and 



STEVE ROLFE, MIDLAND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT CORP. – CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
Page 2 
 

secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to the approval of the Common 
Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey Map. 

 
4. Steve Rolfe, Midland Commercial Development Corp., successors and assigns, and any 

developer of the Steve Rolfe, Midland Commercial Development Corp. two (2) lot 
certified survey map project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all 
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, 
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, within 30 days of invoice for same.  
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9-14 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general 
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Steve Rolfe, Midland Commercial 
Development Corp. and the two (2) lot certified survey map project for the property 
located at 10001 W Church Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable 
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all 
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable 
to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval. 

6. The applicant must submit a conservation easement for Common Council review and 
approval, after Site Plan approval. 

7. The applicant must resolve any technical corrections required by the Engineering or 
Planning Department, or the City Attorney’s Office prior to the recording of the Certified 
Survey Map. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, 
Megna Living Trust, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and without any 
further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above conditions is or 
are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this Resolution. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions within 
180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval, and 
pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and procedures for the 
recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to obtain the recording of 
the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Megna Living Trust, with the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County. 
 

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______day of ____________________, 2025. 

 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
 



STEVE ROLFE, MIDLAND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT CORP. – CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-_____ 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 
 
 
 
 



CHUR
CH

ST

S
C
E
P
T
E
R

C
IR

L
O
V
E
R
S
L
A
N
E

R
D

CHUR
CH

ST

S
C
E
P
T
E
R
D
R

L
O
V
E
R
S
L
A
N
E

R
D

DREXEL AVE

7749 7751

7755

7819

7745

7700

7720

7651

10001

10130

7711

10125

7759

7715

10265

7725

10285
10290

7721 7719

City of Franklin Property Viewer

SE Wisc Reg Planning Comm, SEWRPC, Maxar, Microsoft

Parcel

7/30/2025, 3:05:34 PM
0 0.03 0.050.01 mi

0 0.04 0.080.02 km

1:2,257

Guest

Earthstar Geographics | City of Franklin, WI |



1 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Date: July 14, 2025 
To: Paul Imig PE, Sigma 
From: Department of City Development. Luke Hamill, Associate Planner. 
RE: Staff Comments, 10001 W Church Street / 795 9999 007 
 
 
Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application submitted on June 11, 
2025, for a proposed Certified Survey Map for the creation of 2 lots on lot located at 10001 
W Church Street / 795 9999 007. The following comments are for your review and 
consideration. 

Planning Department Comments 

1. Please revise the CSM to include building setback lines. 
2. Please revise the CSM to show the existing building setbacks. 
3. Please update the zoning district, which is now “B-R – Regional Business District”. 
4. Please update the CSM to show the 30 foot wetland buffer. 
5. According to Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-9-13A.5, a Natural Resource 

Protection Plan is required for CS’'s that contain natural resource features, like wetland and 
woodland. Please submit a Natural Resource Protection Plan showing the protected natural 
resources on site. Please include the wetland delineation with that Protection Plan. 

6. The Site Intensity and Capacity Calulcations that were provided were under the previous 
Unified Development Ordinance. Please use the updated Site Intensity and Capacity 
Calculations Tables provided in the email. 

Engineering Department Comments 

1. Show the Northing and Easting of the monuments/section corners. 
2. Show the vision corner at Hwy 100 and West Church St. 
3. Show the vision corner at West Church St. and South Scepter Dr. 
4. Show “no vehicular access” restriction from Hwy 100. 
5. Add under legend: Lot 1 and 2 are served by public water and sanitary sewer. 
6. Show the exterior curve data (not interior data) per the recorded CSM 3990. 
7. Page 2 of 7 – Show the Easement title on top of page. 
8. Page 3 of 7 – Show the Wetland title on top of page. 
9. Show the 30’ buffer. 
10. Show who delineated the wetlands and on what date. 
11. Page 5 of 7 – Correct the spelling error under surveyor certificate. Should be read as recorded 

not record. 
12. Show building setbacks  
13. Show State Highway setbacks. 



2 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

14. Show middle initials for Mayor (R) and City Clerk (J). 

Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Comments 

• Missing distances on the east line of Lots 1 & 2. 
• Please see the attached markup map made by MCROD. 

 



//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

W
ET

W
ET

WET

W
ET

W
ET

WET

WET
W

ET
W

ET
W

ET

WET
WETWETWETWET

W
ET

WET

W
ET

WET

WET

W
ET

W
ET

WET W
ET

WET

W
ET

WETWET

WET

WET

WET WET WET

78
6

788

790

78
8

79
2

78
6

788

78
4

78
4

78
6

78
6

788

788

78
6

784

78
8

78
8

78
8

788

788

786

786

S89° 45' 41"W  373.80'

N
0°

 1
4'

 1
9"

W
  3

17
.2

6'

L=167.80'
R=790.00'
CH B=N6° 19' 25"W
CH L=167.49'
D=12°10'12"

Lot Curve Data

L=42.73'
R=790.00'
CH B=N13° 57' 29"W
CH L=42.73'
D=3°05'57"

N
15

° 3
0'

 2
7"

W

10
0.

00
'

N74° 29' 33"E  232.53'
L=206.13'

R=773.51'

CH B=N82° 07' 37"E

CH L=205.52'

D=15°16'07"

S0
° 1

4'
 1

9"
E 

 7
10

.3
2'

S89° 45' 41"W
100.00'

N
0°

 1
4'

 1
9"

W
 7

61
.2

2'
N

0°
 1

4'
 1

9"
W

  2
64

4.
02

' (
To

ta
l)

Ea
st

 L
in

e 
of

 th
e 

SW
 1

/4
 o

f S
ec

. 8
-5

-2
1

N89° 45' 32"E
391.55'

exist. bldg.

exist. 
canopy

exist. silo

1" Iron Pipe

1" Iron Pipe

0.5" Rebar

1" Iron Pipe

1" Iron Pipe

W. Church St.

variable width Public R/W

S.
 S

ce
pt

er
 D

r.
80

'  
w

id
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

/W

S.
 L

ov
er

s 
La

ne
 R

d.
 (S

.T
.H

. "
10

0"
 - 

U
.S

.H
. "

45
")

20
0'

  w
id

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
/W

1" Iron Pipe

unplatted lands

LOT 1
79,535 SQ. FT./1.8259 AC.

LOT 2
181,829 SQ. FT./4.1742 AC.

48
3.

82
'

22
6.

50
'

D
en

ot
es

 N
o 

Ve
hi

cu
la

r A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

.T
.H

. "
10

0"
D

en
ot

es
 N

o 
Ve

hi
cu

la
r A

cc
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

 to
 S

.T
.H

. "
10

0"

30' Wetland Buffer (typ.)

30' Wetland Buffer (typ.)

20.3'

81.7'

58.0'

78.9'

60'x60' Vision
Corner

Bu
ild

in
g 

Se
tb

ac
k 

Li
ne

 (t
yp

.)

20.0'

10.0'

20.0'
40.0'

40.0'

Bu
ild

in
g 

Se
tb

ac
k 

Li
ne

 (t
yp

.)

W
ID

O
T 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Se
tb

ac
k 

Li
ne

 (t
yp

.)

40.0'
50.0'

40.0'
50.0'

10.0'

L=210.53'
R=790.00'

CH B=N7° 52' 23"W
CH L=209.91'
D=15°16'09"

1

2

1

2

BEING A RE-DIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,WISCONSIN

00 100' 200'

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 

Sheet 1 of 7 PROJECT # 23267  DRAFTED JMB

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

SE corner of
SW 1/4 of
Sec.8-5-21
Conc. Mon. w/
brass cap found

NE corner of
SW 1/4 of
Sec.8-5-21
Conc. Mon. w/
brass cap found

Owner/Developer:
Megna Living Trust
Midland Commercial Development Corp.

Site:
1001 W. Church St.
Franklin, WI
TK -7959999007

LEGEND :

INDICATES FOUND MONUMENTATION,
AS NOTED ON DRAWING.

INDICATES SET 3/4" DIAM. REBAR, 18"
LONG WEIGHING 1.50 LBS/LIN. FT.

LOT 1 AND 2 ARE SERVED BY PUBLIC
WATER  AND SANITARY SEWER

BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE
EAST LINE OF THE SW 1/4OF SEC. 8-5-21
ASSUMED TO BEAR N 0°14'19" W.

Current Zoning:
"B-R" Regional Business
District

VICINITY MAP
W. Rawson Ave.

S.
 L

ov
er

s 
La

ne
 R

d.

SW 1/4 of Sec. 8-5-21

(Scale 1" = 2000')

Wetlands as shown:
An assured wetland delineation
was performed by Chad Fradette
of Evergreen Consultants, LLC
on October 17, 2024

Northing: 344,763.69
Easting: 2,493,823.23

Northing: 337,407.69
Easting: 2,493,812.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE



LOT 1
79,535 SQ. FT./1.8259 AC.

LOT 2
181,829 SQ. FT./4.1742 AC.

S.
 S

ce
pt

er
 D

r.
80

'  
w

id
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

/W

S.
 L

ov
er

s 
La

ne
 R

d.
 (S

.T
.H

. "
10

0"
 - 

U
.S

.H
. "

45
")

20
0'

  w
id

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
/W

W. Church St.

variable width Public R/W

unplatted lands

Ea
st

 L
in

e 
of

 th
e 

SW
 1

/4
 o

f S
ec

. 8
-5

-2
1

N74° 29' 33"E

118.35'

N0° 14' 19"W
51.82'

S15° 30' 27"E
50.00'

S74° 29' 33"W126.16'

S89° 45' 41"W
70.00'

S0° 14' 19"E
12.00'

N89° 45' 41"E
70.00'

S0° 14' 19"E
90.00'

N89° 45' 41"E
10.00'

S0° 14' 19"E
163.50'

S89° 45' 41"W
50.00'

N
0°

 1
4'

 1
9"

W
16

3.
50

'

N89° 45' 41"E
50.00'

Access Easement per
Doc. No. 6457152 &
6790405

Access Easement per
Doc. No. 6457152 &
6790405

Utility Easement
per Doc. No.
6851514

BEING A RE-DIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,WISCONSIN

00 100' 200'

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 

Sheet 2 of 7 PROJECT # 23267  DRAFTED JMB

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

NE corner of
SW 1/4 of
Sec.8-5-21
Conc. Mon. w/
brass cap found

EXISTING EASEMENTS EXHIBIT

SE corner of
SW 1/4 of
Sec.8-5-21
Conc. Mon. w/
brass cap found

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE



LOT 1
79,535 SQ. FT./1.8259 AC.

LOT 2
181,829 SQ. FT./4.1742 AC.

S.
 S

ce
pt

er
 D

r.
80

'  
w

id
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

/W

S.
 L

ov
er

s 
La

ne
 R

d.
 (S

.T
.H

. "
10

0"
 - 

U
.S

.H
. "

45
")

20
0'

  w
id

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
/W

W. Church St.

variable width Public R/W

unplatted lands

Ea
st

 L
in

e 
of

 th
e 

SW
 1

/4
 o

f S
ec

. 8
-5

-2
1

SEE WETLAND LINE
TABLE ON SHEET 4

W
ET

WETWETWET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

WET

W
ET

WET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

WET

WET

WET

WET

WET WET
WET

WET WET WET WET
WET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

WET

WET
WET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

WET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

WET

W
ET

WETWET

WET

WET

WET WET

W
ET

WETWETWET

L62

L61

L60

L59

L58

L57

L56
L55

L54

L5
3

L52

L51

L50L49
L48

L4
7

L4
6

L45

L44 L43
L42

L41

L40

L39
L38

L37

L36 L35

L34 L33 L32 L31 L30L29

L28

L27

L26
L25
L24
L23
L22

L2
1

L2
0

L1
9

L18
L17 L16

L15 L14

L1
3

L1
2

L11

L10
L9
L8
L7
L6
L5

L4

L3
L2

L1

L70

L69

L68 L67 L66 L65

L64
L63

L77
L76
L75
L74L73

L72
L71

N78° 08' 09"W

193.42'
SE corner
of Lot 2

NE corner
of Lot 2

S67° 40' 07"W
97.27'

BEING A RE-DIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,WISCONSIN

00 100' 200'

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 

Sheet 3 of 7 PROJECT # 23267  DRAFTED JMB

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

NE corner of
SW 1/4 of
Sec.8-5-21
Conc. Mon. w/
brass cap found

WETLAND EXHIBIT

SE corner of
SW 1/4 of
Sec.8-5-21
Conc. Mon. w/
brass cap found

Wetlands as shown:
An assured wetland delineation
was performed by Chad Fradette
of Evergreen Consultants, LLC
on October 17, 2024

30
' W

et
la

nd
Bu

ffe
r (

ty
p.

)

30' WetlandBuffer (typ.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE



BEING A RE-DIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,WISCONSIN

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 

Sheet 4 of 7 PROJECT # 23267  DRAFTED JMB

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

WETLAND LINE TABLE

Wetland Line Table

Line #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

Length

10.71'

14.41'

28.42'

6.20'

3.97'

2.76'

5.87'

16.18'

37.11'

19.28'

33.92'

29.82'

37.58'

33.05'

27.53'

28.41'

11.66'

5.57'

21.26'

28.16'

25.39'

21.06'

16.47'

16.03'

8.55'

7.39'

11.70'

12.52'

7.79'

21.79'

47.45'

Direction

S84° 22' 04"E

S84° 22' 01"E

S9° 44' 51"E

S41° 14' 07"E

S67° 57' 35"E

S45° 18' 01"W

S69° 54' 21"W

S14° 42' 40"W

S9° 16' 49"W

S13° 00' 33"E

S59° 35' 56"E

S13° 49' 48"E

S0° 16' 07"W

S7° 59' 05"W

N71° 22' 07"W

N59° 02' 54"W

N44° 27' 54"W

N11° 07' 58"E

N6° 15' 52"E

N9° 02' 08"E

N17° 52' 24"E

N10° 30' 15"E

N7° 17' 58"E

N9° 25' 05"E

N12° 32' 08"E

N13° 20' 36"W

N42° 43' 51"W

N22° 27' 46"W

N86° 01' 54"W

S54° 26' 05"W

S88° 38' 11"W

Wetland Line Table

Line #

L32

L33

L34

L35

L36

L37

L38

L39

L40

L41

L42

L43

L44

L45

L46

L47

L48

L49

L50

L51

L52

L53

L54

L55

L56

L57

L58

L59

L60

L61

L62

Length

42.36'

39.06'

30.14'

5.81'

12.87'

4.83'

8.10'

14.71'

8.05'

9.14'

18.04'

14.40'

13.72'

13.95'

52.97'

16.31'

23.76'

23.67'

16.04'

12.52'

21.38'

30.91'

29.46'

18.28'

36.94'

0.41'

16.00'

12.19'

10.19'

6.59'

13.86'

Direction

S83° 49' 22"W

N78° 44' 01"W

N87° 50' 28"W

S53° 53' 49"W

N89° 15' 44"W

N24° 22' 09"W

N80° 19' 52"E

N18° 55' 32"E

N86° 51' 46"E

N22° 20' 57"E

N56° 32' 14"W

N34° 10' 44"W

N60° 19' 58"W

N2° 43' 53"E

N29° 47' 45"E

N47° 05' 59"E

N72° 12' 03"E

N13° 12' 26"E

S43° 54' 53"E

S30° 15' 29"E

S8° 18' 51"E

S6° 11' 36"E

S20° 33' 11"E

S47° 58' 41"E

N85° 00' 45"E

N46° 53' 05"W

S81° 11' 48"E

S41° 17' 53"E

N81° 57' 39"E

N62° 38' 33"E

N86° 54' 49"E

Wetland Line Table

Line #

L63

L64

L65

L66

L67

L68

L69

L70

L71

L72

L73

L74

L75

L76

L77

Length

8.29'

14.85'

21.68'

18.72'

17.11'

4.60'

7.01'

17.87'

36.32'

7.06'

5.09'

10.07'

8.16'

13.60'

4.97'

Direction

N71° 42' 10"W

S85° 14' 28"W

N56° 31' 03"W

N63° 21' 45"W

N52° 12' 15"W

N14° 54' 16"E

N64° 29' 29"E

S89° 36' 55"E

S89° 50' 36"E

S63° 56' 04"E

S63° 56' 11"E

S15° 55' 49"E

S3° 36' 50"W

S1° 17' 26"E

S57° 12' 12"W



BEING A RE-DIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,WISCONSIN

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 

Sheet 5 of 7 PROJECT # 23267  DRAFTED JMB

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
SS

MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

I, Kevin A. Slottke, Professional Land Surveyor, hereby certify that I have surveyed, divided and mapped
all of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 3990, recorded on March 24, 1981 as Document No. 5464628, being
a part of the Southeast 1/4 and Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 8, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in
the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Said parcel contains 261,364 square feet or 6.0001 acres of land, more or less.

That I have made the survey, land division, and map by the direction of the owners of said land. That the
map is a correct representation of all the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division thereof
made. That I have fully complied with s. 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and of the City of Franklin Unified
Development ordinance - Division 15 in surveying, dividing and mapping the same.

Kevin A. Slottke        S-2503 July 28, 2025



BEING A RE-DIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,WISCONSIN

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 

Sheet 6 of 7 PROJECT # 23267  DRAFTED JMB

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

ENTITY OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

Megna Living Trust, as owner, caused the land described on this map to be surveyed, divided and mapped as
represented on this map.

Megna Living Trust, as owner, does further certify that this map is required by s. 236.10 or 236.12 to be submitted to
the following for approval or objection: The City of Franklin.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Megna Living Trust, owner, has caused these presents to be signed,

at _          ____________, Wisconsin,  this_____ day of ___________, 20        .

By: Megna Living Trust

[signature]

[printed name & title]  

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
      )SS

MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me this       day of                       , 20____, the

above-named__________________________, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument

and to me known to be the_____________________________  of Megna Living Trust, and  acknowledged that they
executed the foregoing instrument as such member as the deed of said corporation, by its authority.

(SEAL) NOTARY PUBLIC signature, STATE OF WISCONSIN

notary printed name

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES                         .



BEING A RE-DIVISION OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3990, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
AND NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,WISCONSIN

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 

Sheet 7 of 7 PROJECT # 23267  DRAFTED JMB

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON COUNCIL CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP WAS APPROVED UNDER RESOLUTION NO. __________

ADOPTED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN ON THIS _____ DAY OF ______, 20_____,

__________ ____________________________ _______________________________________
JOHN R. NELSON, MAYOR              SHIRLEY J. ROBERTS, CLERK



Project Narrative 

As developer of the project, we are acquiring the 6 acres property from a private owner for 
the redevelopment of a stand-alone grocery store to be situated on its own tax parcel 
containing approximately 4.17 acres. The existing “Speedway” will remain and be on its 
own parcel consisting of approximately 1.83 acres.  

The northern (Speedway) parcel has been reviewed by the design team for conformance to 
the new UDO for setbacks, floor area, and minimum landscape percentage. 

The south parcel for the proposed stand-alone grocery store has also been reviewed by the 
design team for conformance to the new UDO for setbacks, floor area, and minimum 
landscape percentage. The review has been completed based on a preliminary site plan, 
site engineering, stormwater management, and landscaping. The proposed site is in 
conformance with UDO requirements, however final site layout, engineering, landscaping, 
and stormwater management has not been completed and may be revised during design 
prior to submission to Plan Commission for Site Plan approval. If the site layout, 
engineering, stormwater, or landscaping are revised, any changes will be made in 
conformance to the new UDO. 

Construction of the stand-alone grocery store will commence upon completion of city 
entitlements, including CSM, Site Plan, engineering, stormwater, and landscaping.  

 





�

���������	
��
��� � �	���
�������������	
�������
��
	���
����	�����	���������������
��������	���
����� � ���

������������
��������	���
��������������	
��
���� ���������	���!����"�������#


�����"�������	�������
���!
�����

��	��#��	����������	�$#�������������	��"
�$
����������#���!��	��	��#�������	�

���$�����#�������	������
��������#��

����	�"��
���$���	�
�����#�	��
���	�����	���"���#����	���
�����
������#������	
	����	�����
�����������
�����#


�����"����������%���������	����#�	���	��������
����	���������
��!�

�
��&�
��
������	���#���
���������#�������
�����'��())*+,-.+/0�1/2�-�342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,78� 	������
��
��
�������	�
���	�����
�����������
������	��#����������
�
���

�����	���	�
��#
�$�����
���������	���$������
��#�	�����	���������#


�"���
�������#����	����	����9������������	�������:��;<<6-0,4�/1�-�342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,78�9���#���	����������������������	�����!��#��#���	�������������#����	���
������#����	�����
�����������
�����#


�"���������!��#����#	���!�	���$��
���
���	��#��
��
��
�������	��#���
���#
��"�����
������
��
���	��#�������
���������	�������#����	���
����
�����#�	�
��
��
"
��������������
���
���

�����������	�
��������#����	���
�����	���#�	�������
	����		�������=��>/2?�/1�342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,7�-0@�A42?-040.�B4,/2@8�C
�#���	�����
�����������
�����#


���
����#
���#��"��
���$��	��	��������������
�"��
���$��	�

�������
����!��#�


��	�������������#����	���
�������	���	�����


���	�����
������������
�����#


�"������������
������#�������������#����	����	����9������������	������
���
�������#


�"����	!
	��������	�&���������
�����	����#
���$��	��	���
	���	����
��������	���������#��"��
���$��	�

���
���������D��342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,7�E/.�B4F6+24@�1/2�G-<�-0@�H*4,.2+,�I.+*+.7�I<4<�;<<64@�-�342.+1+,-.4�/1�A6J*+,�3/0K40+40,4�-0@�E4,4<<+.78�L����	�����
�����������
�����#


�"��	�&��	�����	�$
��
����
���	������
���������!#��#�#
���"�����������
���	�����
��������"
���������������
���L�����������	��
������M���=�'�������#�� �����������
������
��
��������NOPQPRS8�T+.4�;0.40<+.7�-0@�3-)-,+.7�3-*,6*-.+/0<8����T+.4�;0.40<+.7�3-*,6*-.+/0<8�����B4,/U0+.+/0�/1�V+<.+0,.+K4�T+.4�>4-.624<8�W#����	���
����	���$��X����#
��

����	�����
	��
���X��
����#
����
����
��	

�	����	�����
��	����
	���	����������������
����#
������
�������	�$�

������������
��������
��������#�����
	�
�������W#���
%��������������	������������������


�!������
���X����$�����	�����������	�

���"���#���
	���������	������
��
	���������	�#���	��
�#�����#���
	�����X����$�����	���������#����	���
�����Y��())*+,-J+*+.78���
��C%�����
��������	�#�����	�ZY[Z"[�"�
�!���#�����������������
����
�
������

��

������������	�#�����#�����������
����#��L
��	

�\����	����	�����������
��
	���������	�#�����	���
��D��#


�
��
����	��
�#��
	��
����

������"��������	�"��
�����������#�����������	
��
������
����$�


���!���	���������	����]
�����	�
����
	���

��������������������
���
�̂�
��
��	��������

�����
���������


���%��̂�����	����	��������

�����
��������
���
���
��"��	�&��	����
��!#�	������#����	���
�����"��L
��	

�	����	����	����������#


�����"��	�&��	���
����#�����������������
����
�
������

��

������������	�#�����#������������#


�����"��	�&��	�����	��#�������	�������������$
�̂�
��
��
������
�%�	��������

�����
�������
��
����������̂������"
���%�����$�
�������	���	��!��#����%�����$��

�������"����������Z!��#�
��
��	��������

��

�[����	���������	����]
����
�����������������%�����$������$����������_���#�������������
�������#����	���
�����	���	�!#��#�
��
��	

�	����	����	����������

��
�������������������
�
������

��

������!�	����
���
���#�������������������
���	���$����������_���̀�Ha,*6<+/0<�bcd40�E-.62-*�B4</62,4�A2/.4,.+/0�-0@�T+.4�;0.40<+.7�-0@�3-)-,+.7�3-*,6*-.+/0<�(24�0/.�B4F6+24@e8��
��L��!��#��
����$�
�����#�	��	������������#����	���
�����L
��	

�\����	����	���������
���
������#�	�

����L
��	

�\����	����	����������

���#


�����"��	�&��	���
����#�����������������
����
�
������

��

������������	�#�����#������������#


�����"��	�&��	�����	�
���
������	��������	����	���	�
������	����������
��������	���	�
��
���������	��������
��������
���%�����$��	�����

���	����	������
�������!#��#�������������	�
����#���%�����$�����
�������	����	��
�������	��������	�
���
	�
�������#���
	��
�"����	���#
��:fg��	�Y�:ff��&�
	��������!#��#���	����

pimig
Text Box
ALDI PARCEL



�

���������	
��
��� � �	���
�������������	
�������
��
	���
����	�����	���������������
��������	���
����� � ���

������������
��������	���
��� ����������	
��
�� �!�����������


�	 �"#�	���
��	

�	����	�����
��	�$�%�
	������"��#����&&����������#��
	�
����'�������	'���'���#����"�����
������ ������
��
	��
������	���(�
���)�����(��	�����

���	����	��"��#�
���)�����(��	�����

����*��'������	���
�����
�����"#��#�	��
��	

�	����	�����
��	���
	��"��#����&&����������#��
	�
����'�������	'�� ��#��'����
	�������"#��#��#


�'���
�
	
�������������"��#���
��
��
������
��	�

� ��#


�'���
���'���#�������+�(����	��	�����(���������	�
����	��
	��
���������
	��+���	������

���		���	��
���,��

����-
��	

�.����	����	�
����������'���#������#�
���	��!���������.�(���

��

����(�������������#
��
	��
��
��������#�������'���#�������+�(����	��	�����(��� �'���"#������
	����'����
	��
������	���#
���&&����������#��
	�
����'�������	'�� �
�"	�������

���#


�'���	�������'���#��
��
��
������
�
��(��#���	�����������
��	����#
��"�

�'�����
������������	������
���	������
������/#���

���#


�'����'0�������
��	��

�'���#���

�������������
����#


�'�����
��������
��
��������������
��
��
�����
��	��

���1��2345643789:�9;�<=>3�9;�?376=34�@>A96=5>�B=97>5789:�C3:DE��
���

�

���
	�
�"��#��#�����
��	

�	����	�����
��	���
������	�'���������������FGHG&������#����	���
�����#


�'����
��	���	�

���������
�#��
��	

�	����	�����
��	���	����� �
��������	�#�������������FGHG&� �-
��	

�.����	������
��	�������	���
�������'��/#�����

�
	�
����-
��	

�.����	����	���������I
����#


�'����������
���#������

�����	�
���
	�
�
���(�"��#����#��'����
	������������	���	���
��	

�	����	�����
��	�� �
��������	�#����/
'
���FG�G&1$�%$1% ��

��

��������-
��	

�.����	����	���������I
����	�
��I
�����	�
���
	�
�"#�	���"���	���	���
��	

�	����	�����
��	������	

���#


�'������������
���������	���	�������������	�����(��#��
	�
����	����	����	���������

�������
���#


�'����'�������"��#��#��-
��	

�.����	����	����������

����	��
�������	���
��H������
���(��#��'����
	��������
�#��
��	

�	����	�����
��	� ��#����J������
�#���
��	� �
����#�����

�
	�
�����#�������
���(�"��#����#��'����
	�������
��
�
��������
��	

�	����	�����
��	������/#��

�����	�
���
	�
�����
�#��
��	

�	����	�����
��	����	����������'�������	'���
���"#�	��
��	���� ��������
��� ���	��
���������������FGHG&K��#


�'��������������	������#���)���������������
�����	�L��	�� �
��������	�#����/
'
���FGHG&K ����������	
��
���-
��	

�.����	�����������
�����.
�������M3N4>�OPQRQSTU<VUTVW�2345643789:�9;�?376=34�@>A96=5>�B=97>5789:�C3:D�<=>3�@>A96=5>XY>376=>� M9734�43:D�A6=;35>�3=>3�9;�>35Z�?376=34�@>A96=5>�;>376=>�U35=>A�9=�A[63=>�;>>7\�6A>�7Z=96]Z967V�
���+!.����	��
	��+���	������

���		���	� ��'���+!.���������
	��+���	������

���		���	� ������+!.���,��

����-
��	

�.����	��� �������	�
���!
��	��	�!��

���̂����	� �����!���

����	���	���� �����!��

��� ��(����(	
����!��

��� ��#��I
����	������ �����_	����

�����	�
���
	�
�����
��	

�	����	�����
��	��� $�%�̀��������$
%��#	��(#�$#%�
'����0��-���-
��	

�.����	����	���������I
���G�/��

�
	�
�����#�������
���(�"��#����#��'����
	�������
��
�
�������-
��	

�.����	�����
��	��$
%��#	��(#�$#%� ����	������	����
�*����

���	�
���
	�
�
���(�"��#���
��
�
�������-
��	

�.����	�����
��	��� �

pimig
Text Box
ALDI PARCEL

pimig
Text Box
ALDI PARCEL

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
31,315  SF

pimig
Text Box
18,076 SF

pimig
Text Box
49,391 SF

pimig
Text Box
49,391 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF



�

���������	
��
��� � �	���
�������������	
�������
��
	���
����	�����	���������������
��������	���
����� � ���

������������
��������	���
��� ����������	
��
�� �!���������"��#$%&'%$()*+�*,�-$./�0)(/�12/$��34��5
��������
	�
��4


�5���

��

����
�������
�������3
5
���"6�6789�:9":���	��
�4��
	��
����

�����	�;4��4�����
�������
��	��

�������<4���4
����������=�����������	����������"6�67���>$?%/@ABCBDEF1GFAGH�#$%&'%$()*+�*,�-$./�0)(/�12/$�I*2�J/K/%*LM/+(�0(/L� N$+O�12/$�(*�-/�J/(/2M)+/O� #$%&'%$()*+� 12/$�F0P'$2/�,//(�*2�$&2/.Q�'./�(R2*'SR*'(G�
� 3��

�<	���������
	�
�9����	�
�	��T������4	��<4���:�����	�������4	��<4�
�5����
	����	��������4����5U�����	���	��� ��5� V
�����������
������5
�����	����	�<4��6��6;
� �

���
��
����;��4����4���
���
���	�
��	�<4�6��6;
������=�����<�	�
�� �	�<4��6��6;
��������
����� �
��������
������5
����
	���	���4��
������� ���� V
���	���	������	��������
���
���
	�����
��	������
��
��	���������
��������	�

������������ ���� V
���
	�
����5��	���	������	��
	���
�����4��
�� ���� W���W
��	

�X����	����	���������V
��� �	�;�9U:��	���3
5
���"6�67�� ���� W���Y��
�
5
���	�
���	�����
�������Z�9
:�[�\����95]�]�]�:̂� ���_��#$%&'%$()*+�*,�0)(/�̀+(/+.)(a�$+O�#$L$&)(a�,*2�b/.)O/+()$%�c./.�)+�b/.)O/+()$%�d*+)+S�J).(2)&(.��34���
=��������5�	�����;�

��<��������4
���
��5����	����������
��
	��
����

������
�	��������

�e����<�����	��� �
����������������������"6f67f ��4


�5������	����������<��4��Y
���������	�
���	�����
������ �	�;�9�:����3
5
���"6�6789�:9": �
��������	�4����3
5
���"6�6789�:9_:�5�
�;g�>$?%/�@ABCBDEF1GFhGH�#$%&'%$()*+�*,�0)(/�#$L$&)(a�I*2�b/.)O/+()$%�c./.�N$+O�12/$�(*�-/�J/(/2M)+/O� 12/$�F0I�*2�$&2/.Q�'./�(R2*'SR*'(G�
��W���Y��
�
5
���	�
���	�����
������ �X�;�9�:��	���3
5
���"6�6789�:9":� 
�Z�	�;�9�: �3
5
���"6�6789�:9":���	���
��6�
��
������� �����	������g�5��W��5�	�����������	������g� ���i�������
���
	�
���	������9�	������������"6�67�:� ��Z�95:�=�9�:�i�������

���
	�
�	�j��	��g���	����<
�6�
��
������� �����	������g����W��5�	�����������	������g� ���i�������
���
	�
���	������9�	������������"6�67�:� <�Z�9�:�=�9�:�i�������

���
	�
�	�j��	��g�3��

���������

���
	�
�	�j��	����4


������=���������5��
�
5
��
	�
���	�����
������T��4�����4
��94:�k�9
:� 4�Z�9�:�]�9<:�3��

���������

���
	�
�	�j��	��g��� �

pimig
Text Box
ALDI PARCEL

pimig
Text Box
181,829 SF

pimig
Text Box
900 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
49,391 SF

pimig
Text Box
131,538 SF



�

���������	
��
��� � �	���
�������������	
�������
��
	���
����	�����	���������������
��������	���
����� � ���

������������
��������	���
��������������	
��
���� ���������	���!����"�������#


�����"�������	�������
���!
�����

��	��#��	����������	�$#�������������	��"
�$
����������#���!��	��	��#�������	�

���$�����#�������	������
��������#��

����	�"��
���$���	�
�����#�	��
���	�����	���"���#����	���
�����
������#������	
	����	�����
�����������
�����#


�����"����������%���������	����#�	���	��������
����	���������
��!�

�
��&�
��
������	���#���
���������#�������
�����'��())*+,-.+/0�1/2�-�342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,78� 	������
��
��
�������	�
���	�����
�����������
������	��#����������
�
���

�����	���	�
��#
�$�����
���������	���$������
��#�	�����	���������#


�"���
�������#����	����	����9������������	�������:��;<<6-0,4�/1�-�342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,78�9���#���	����������������������	�����!��#��#���	�������������#����	���
������#����	�����
�����������
�����#


�"���������!��#����#	���!�	���$��
���
���	��#��
��
��
�������	��#���
���#
��"�����
������
��
���	��#�������
���������	�������#����	���
����
�����#�	�
��
��
"
��������������
���
���

�����������	�
��������#����	���
�����	���#�	�������
	����		�������=��>/2?�/1�342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,7�-0@�A42?-040.�B4,/2@8�C
�#���	�����
�����������
�����#


���
����#
���#��"��
���$��	��	��������������
�"��
���$��	�

�������
����!��#�


��	�������������#����	���
�������	���	�����


���	�����
������������
�����#


�"������������
������#�������������#����	����	����9������������	������
���
�������#


�"����	!
	��������	�&���������
�����	����#
���$��	��	���
	���	����
��������	���������#��"��
���$��	�

���
���������D��342.+1+,-.4�/1�5,,6)-0,7�E/.�B4F6+24@�1/2�G-<�-0@�H*4,.2+,�I.+*+.7�I<4<�;<<64@�-�342.+1+,-.4�/1�A6J*+,�3/0K40+40,4�-0@�E4,4<<+.78�L����	�����
�����������
�����#


�"��	�&��	�����	�$
��
����
���	������
���������!#��#�#
���"�����������
���	�����
��������"
���������������
���L�����������	��
������M���=�'�������#�� �����������
������
��
��������NOPQPRS8�T+.4�;0.40<+.7�-0@�3-)-,+.7�3-*,6*-.+/0<8����T+.4�;0.40<+.7�3-*,6*-.+/0<8�����B4,/U0+.+/0�/1�V+<.+0,.+K4�T+.4�>4-.624<8�W#����	���
����	���$��X����#
��

����	�����
	��
���X��
����#
����
����
��	

�	����	�����
��	����
	���	����������������
����#
������
�������	�$�

������������
��������
��������#�����
	�
�������W#���
%��������������	������������������


�!������
���X����$�����	�����������	�

���"���#���
	���������	������
��
	���������	�#���	��
�#�����#���
	�����X����$�����	���������#����	���
�����Y��())*+,-J+*+.78���
��C%�����
��������	�#�����	�ZY[Z"[�"�
�!���#�����������������
����
�
������

��

������������	�#�����#�����������
����#��L
��	

�\����	����	�����������
��
	���������	�#�����	���
��D��#


�
��
����	��
�#��
	��
����

������"��������	�"��
�����������#�����������	
��
������
����$�


���!���	���������	����]
�����	�
����
	���

��������������������
���
�̂�
��
��	��������

�����
���������


���%��̂�����	����	��������

�����
��������
���
���
��"��	�&��	����
��!#�	������#����	���
�����"��L
��	

�	����	����	����������#


�����"��	�&��	���
����#�����������������
����
�
������

��

������������	�#�����#������������#


�����"��	�&��	�����	��#�������	�������������$
�̂�
��
��
������
�%�	��������

�����
�������
��
����������̂������"
���%�����$�
�������	���	��!��#����%�����$��

�������"����������Z!��#�
��
��	��������

��

�[����	���������	����]
����
�����������������%�����$������$����������_���#�������������
�������#����	���
�����	���	�!#��#�
��
��	

�	����	����	����������

��
�������������������
�
������

��

������!�	����
���
���#�������������������
���	���$����������_���̀�Ha,*6<+/0<�bcd40�E-.62-*�B4</62,4�A2/.4,.+/0�-0@�T+.4�;0.40<+.7�-0@�3-)-,+.7�3-*,6*-.+/0<�(24�0/.�B4F6+24@e8��
��L��!��#��
����$�
�����#�	��	������������#����	���
�����L
��	

�\����	����	���������
���
������#�	�

����L
��	

�\����	����	����������

���#


�����"��	�&��	���
����#�����������������
����
�
������

��

������������	�#�����#������������#


�����"��	�&��	�����	�
���
������	��������	����	���	�
������	����������
��������	���	�
��
���������	��������
��������
���%�����$��	�����

���	����	������
�������!#��#�������������	�
����#���%�����$�����
�������	����	��
�������	��������	�
���
	�
�������#���
	��
�"����	���#
��:fg��	�Y�:ff��&�
	��������!#��#���	����

pimig
Text Box
SPEEDWAY PARCEL



�

���������	
��
��� � �	���
�������������	
�������
��
	���
����	�����	���������������
��������	���
����� � ���

������������
��������	���
��� ����������	
��
�� �!�����������


�	 �"#�	���
��	

�	����	�����
��	�$�%�
	������"��#����&&����������#��
	�
����'�������	'���'���#����"�����
������ ������
��
	��
������	���(�
���)�����(��	�����

���	����	��"��#�
���)�����(��	�����

����*��'������	���
�����
�����"#��#�	��
��	

�	����	�����
��	���
	��"��#����&&����������#��
	�
����'�������	'�� ��#��'����
	�������"#��#��#


�'���
�
	
�������������"��#���
��
��
������
��	�

� ��#


�'���
���'���#�������+�(����	��	�����(���������	�
����	��
	��
���������
	��+���	������

���		���	��
���,��

����-
��	

�.����	����	�
����������'���#������#�
���	��!���������.�(���

��

����(�������������#
��
	��
��
��������#�������'���#�������+�(����	��	�����(��� �'���"#������
	����'����
	��
������	���#
���&&����������#��
	�
����'�������	'�� �
�"	�������

���#


�'���	�������'���#��
��
��
������
�
��(��#���	�����������
��	����#
��"�

�'�����
������������	������
���	������
������/#���

���#


�'����'0�������
��	��

�'���#���

�������������
����#


�'�����
��������
��
��������������
��
��
�����
��	��

���1��2345643789:�9;�<=>3�9;�?376=34�@>A96=5>�B=97>5789:�C3:DE��
���

�

���
	�
�"��#��#�����
��	

�	����	�����
��	���
������	�'���������������FGHG&������#����	���
�����#


�'����
��	���	�

���������
�#��
��	

�	����	�����
��	���	����� �
��������	�#�������������FGHG&� �-
��	

�.����	������
��	�������	���
�������'��/#�����

�
	�
����-
��	

�.����	����	���������I
����#


�'����������
���#������

�����	�
���
	�
�
���(�"��#����#��'����
	������������	���	���
��	

�	����	�����
��	�� �
��������	�#����/
'
���FG�G&1$�%$1% ��

��

��������-
��	

�.����	����	���������I
����	�
��I
�����	�
���
	�
�"#�	���"���	���	���
��	

�	����	�����
��	������	

���#


�'������������
���������	���	�������������	�����(��#��
	�
����	����	����	���������

�������
���#


�'����'�������"��#��#��-
��	

�.����	����	����������

����	��
�������	���
��H������
���(��#��'����
	��������
�#��
��	

�	����	�����
��	� ��#����J������
�#���
��	� �
����#�����

�
	�
�����#�������
���(�"��#����#��'����
	�������
��
�
��������
��	

�	����	�����
��	������/#��

�����	�
���
	�
�����
�#��
��	

�	����	�����
��	����	����������'�������	'���
���"#�	��
��	���� ��������
��� ���	��
���������������FGHG&K��#


�'��������������	������#���)���������������
�����	�L��	�� �
��������	�#����/
'
���FGHG&K ����������	
��
���-
��	

�.����	�����������
�����.
�������M3N4>�OPQRQSTU<VUTVW�2345643789:�9;�?376=34�@>A96=5>�B=97>5789:�C3:D�<=>3�@>A96=5>XY>376=>� M9734�43:D�A6=;35>�3=>3�9;�>35Z�?376=34�@>A96=5>�;>376=>�U35=>A�9=�A[63=>�;>>7\�6A>�7Z=96]Z967V�
���+!.����	��
	��+���	������

���		���	� ��'���+!.���������
	��+���	������

���		���	� ������+!.���,��

����-
��	

�.����	��� �������	�
���!
��	��	�!��

���̂����	� �����!���

����	���	���� �����!��

��� ��(����(	
����!��

��� ��#��I
����	������ �����_	����

�����	�
���
	�
�����
��	

�	����	�����
��	��� $�%�̀��������$
%��#	��(#�$#%�
'����0��-���-
��	

�.����	����	���������I
���G�/��

�
	�
�����#�������
���(�"��#����#��'����
	�������
��
�
�������-
��	

�.����	�����
��	��$
%��#	��(#�$#%� ����	������	����
�*����

���	�
���
	�
�
���(�"��#���
��
�
�������-
��	

�.����	�����
��	��� �

pimig
Text Box
SPEEDWAY PARCEL

pimig
Text Box
SPEEDWAY PARCEL

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
8,021 SF

pimig
Text Box
4,070 SF

pimig
Text Box
12,091 SF

pimig
Text Box
12,091 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF



�

���������	
��
��� � �	���
�������������	
�������
��
	���
����	�����	���������������
��������	���
����� � ���

������������
��������	���
��� ����������	
��
�� �!���������"��#$%&'%$()*+�*,�-$./�0)(/�12/$��34��5
��������
	�
��4


�5���

��

����
�������
�������3
5
���"6�6789�:9":���	��
�4��
	��
����

�����	�;4��4�����
�������
��	��

�������<4���4
����������=�����������	����������"6�67���>$?%/@ABCBDEF1GFAGH�#$%&'%$()*+�*,�-$./�0)(/�12/$�I*2�J/K/%*LM/+(�0(/L� N$+O�12/$�(*�-/�J/(/2M)+/O� #$%&'%$()*+� 12/$�F0P'$2/�,//(�*2�$&2/.Q�'./�(R2*'SR*'(G�
� 3��

�<	���������
	�
�9����	�
�	��T������4	��<4���:�����	�������4	��<4�
�5����
	����	��������4����5U�����	���	��� ��5� V
�����������
������5
�����	����	�<4��6��6;
� �

���
��
����;��4����4���
���
���	�
��	�<4�6��6;
������=�����<�	�
�� �	�<4��6��6;
��������
����� �
��������
������5
����
	���	���4��
������� ���� V
���	���	������	��������
���
���
	�����
��	������
��
��	���������
��������	�

������������ ���� V
���
	�
����5��	���	������	��
	���
�����4��
�� ���� W���W
��	

�X����	����	���������V
��� �	�;�9U:��	���3
5
���"6�67�� ���� W���Y��
�
5
���	�
���	�����
�������Z�9
:�[�\����95]�]�]�:̂� ���_��#$%&'%$()*+�*,�0)(/�̀+(/+.)(a�$+O�#$L$&)(a�,*2�b/.)O/+()$%�c./.�)+�b/.)O/+()$%�d*+)+S�J).(2)&(.��34���
=��������5�	�����;�

��<��������4
���
��5����	����������
��
	��
����

������
�	��������

�e����<�����	��� �
����������������������"6f67f ��4


�5������	����������<��4��Y
���������	�
���	�����
������ �	�;�9�:����3
5
���"6�6789�:9": �
��������	�4����3
5
���"6�6789�:9_:�5�
�;g�>$?%/�@ABCBDEF1GFhGH�#$%&'%$()*+�*,�0)(/�#$L$&)(a�I*2�b/.)O/+()$%�c./.�N$+O�12/$�(*�-/�J/(/2M)+/O� 12/$�F0I�*2�$&2/.Q�'./�(R2*'SR*'(G�
��W���Y��
�
5
���	�
���	�����
������ �X�;�9�:��	���3
5
���"6�6789�:9":� 
�Z�	�;�9�: �3
5
���"6�6789�:9":���	���
��6�
��
������� �����	������g�5��W��5�	�����������	������g� ���i�������
���
	�
���	������9�	������������"6�67�:� ��Z�95:�=�9�:�i�������

���
	�
�	�j��	��g���	����<
�6�
��
������� �����	������g����W��5�	�����������	������g� ���i�������
���
	�
���	������9�	������������"6�67�:� <�Z�9�:�=�9�:�i�������

���
	�
�	�j��	��g�3��

���������

���
	�
�	�j��	����4


������=���������5��
�
5
��
	�
���	�����
������T��4�����4
��94:�k�9
:� 4�Z�9�:�]�9<:�3��

���������

���
	�
�	�j��	��g��� �

pimig
Text Box
SPEEDWAY PARCEL

pimig
Text Box
79,535 SF

pimig
Text Box
840 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
0 SF

pimig
Text Box
12,091 SF

pimig
Text Box
67,604 SF



H

W
ST

E E E E E E E E E E EE E E E E E E E E E E E

OH OH OH OH OH OH OH

H

ST ST

ST
ST

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E
E

E
E

E

OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH OH

E

G

786
786

786

787

787

787

787

787

788

788

788

788

788

789

789

789

785

785

785

785

785

785

784

784

786

786

786

786

786

78
6

786

787

788
788788

785

785

785

785

784

78
4

784

784

786

786

786

787

787

787

788

788

785

785

785

785

783

783

784
784

784

784

786

786

786

786

787

787

787

787

78
8

788

789

789

785

78
5

785

785

785

784
784

786
787

788

785

785

790

783

783

784

784

786

786786
786

787

788

788

788

788

788

789

789

789

789

789

ST
ST

24
" C

M
P 

C
ul

ve
rt

24
" C

M
P 

C
ul

ve
rt

78
7

788

787

787

788

789790
791

790

788

789

790

788

788

789

OHOHOHOH

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

E E E E E E E E E E E

EE

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

E E E E E E E E

FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO
FO

FO
FO

E

E
E

E

E
E

E
FO

FO

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SANSANSANSANSANSAN

ST ST

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

ST

ST ST

ST ST ST

ST

SANSANSANSANSANSANSAN

STSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

ST
ST

SAN
SAN

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WWWWWW

W

WWWWWWWWW

W
W

30
"

WETWETW
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

W
ET

2,000 SF ARTIFICIAL WETLAND

P/L
P/L

P/L P/L P/L P/L

P/
L

P/
L

P/
L

P/L

P/L
P/LP/L

P/L
P/L

S. SCEPTER DR.

S. LOVERS LANE RD. (S.T.H. "100" - U.S.H. "45")

W
. C

H
U

R
C

H
 ST.

NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURE AREAS - SOUTH PARCEL

RESOURCE TYPE WETLANDS WETLAND
BUFFER

WETLAND
SETBACK

TOTAL AREA 18,075 S.F. (0.41 AC) 29,903 S.F. (0.69 AC) 16,526 S.F (0.38 AC)

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

MRG

----

23267

PJI

PJI

EX-3

10
00

1 
W

. C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
TR

E
E

T

M
ID

LA
N

D
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

D
E

V
E

LO
P

M
E

N
T

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

N
A

TU
R

A
L 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

2025.07.28

i:\midland commercial development\23267-10001 w. church street\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\100_Civil\EX-3 Natural Resource Protection Plan.dwg

23
26

7
EX

-3
AR

O
O

N
EY

20
25

.0
7.

28

----

----

----
----
----
----
----

----

----
----

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

----
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----

NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURE AREAS - NORTH PARCEL

RESOURCE TYPE WETLANDS WETLAND
BUFFER

WETLAND
SETBACK

TOTAL AREA 4,070 S.F. (0.09 AC) 7,320 S.F. (0.17 AC) 7,976 S.F (0.18 AC)


	01 2025-0807 Plan Commission Agenda
	02 2025-0717 PC Minutes - Draft MX
	03 Item C.1._Franklin High School_Conditional Use
	1. 2025-0807 PC Staff Report - Franklin Public Schools CUP
	Item C.1.

	2. Map
	3. 2025-0807 RES Franklin High School CUP
	4. Standard for Conditional Use

	04 Item E.1._Costco_Comprehsive Master Plan Amd & Certified Survey Map
	01 DRAFT Staff Report - Costco CMP Amend. PC Recommendation CMP Amd and CSM
	02 DRAFT PC RES - Costco CMP Amend. PC Recommendation
	03 DRAFT - ORD Costco CMPa
	04 DRAFT RES NM Property CSM
	05 Map
	06 Cover Letter
	07 Project Description
	08 Review Response Letter
	09 NRPP_27th and Drexel
	10 169608 CS10 Franklin
	11 EL 250319 CSM Legal
	12 Proposed Lot 1
	13 Overall Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C300



	05 Item E.2_Midland Commercial Development_Certified Survey Map
	01 PC Report - Midland Commercial CSM
	02 RES Midland Commercial Development CSM 07-30-2025
	03 Map
	04 Staff Comments - CSM - 10001 W Church Street - Midland Commercial Development
	05 23267-CSM
	Sheets and Views
	23267-CSM-8X14 CSM
	23267-CSM-8X14 CSM (2)
	23267-CSM-8X14 CSM (3)
	23267-CSM-8X14 CSM (4)
	23267-CSM-8X14 CSM (5)
	23267-CSM-8X14 CSM (6)
	23267-CSM-8X14 CSM (7)


	06 CSM Project Narrative
	07 Legal description
	08 ALDI- Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations
	09 Speedway - Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations
	10 2025-07-28 Midland Commercial Development NRPP


